Questions on Draft GSA GTO Solicitation Documents

Response to Questions:  23 February 2012


	No.
	Category
	Document
	Section/

Subsection
	Title
	Question/Comment
	Response

	105
	Contract
	TOR
	Page L-9; Section L.7.1.2.2
	
	Ref L.7.1.2.2, would GSA expand upon the statement, “allow the Prime Contractor to meet the GSA Alliant Small business contractual requirements”?  Is this referring to Limitations on subcontracting?
	The Alliant Small Business contract requires that the prime contractor perform at least 50% of the cost of the contract incurred with its own employees.

	106
	Contract
	TOR
	Section  B
	
	Would GSA please expand upon the evaluation of contract type (e.g. what elements of contract type will be evaluated - risk, ease of administration etc.)
	The contract type designation was meant to identify the expectation that a CLIN be FFP or LH.  It will be clarified in the final version of the TOR.  

	116
	Contract
	TOR
	H.7
	
	Can we assume that the incumbents on the current GITGO contract meet the security requirements described in H.7?
	Yes.

	112
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.7.1.3 page L-10: 
	Certifications
	Does GSA need copies of the certificates and if so will they count toward the page count?
	Proof of certification is sufficient and material in support of this will not be part of the page limitation count.

	198
	Contract
	TOR 02_3_12
	L.7.1.3 

Part 1c - Company Certification(s)

	Certifications
	The TOR states: “…Company Certifications are required by the Contractor Team.  Offerors are instructed to identify by Team Member the applicable company certifications achieved and provide proof of declared certifications.” This section is limited to one page. Question: What form of proof is required? If the required proof is a copy of each certification, can the page limit for this section be increased to allow the contractor sufficient room to insert copies of the certifications large enough to be legible for the evaluators? 
	a. There are no page limits for Part 1C Proof of Certifications.
b. GSA is not dictating the form or required proof of certifications.  The Contractor should submit proof that substantiates the certifications claimed in whatever format is most suitable.  
c. See response to a. above.

	131
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.  


	Clarification
	Please clarify why Section L is stamped “Confidential” as well as “Draft.”  Does this classification apply to only Section L?  Is the Government identifying this procurement as having a security requirement, and, if so, what measures does the contractor need to put in place to use, distribute, and protect the information in the solicitation?  

d /Are only cleared contractor personnel permitted to work on the proposal


	The inclusion of a confidential classification marker was incorrect and the editorial oversight will be corrected in the final documents.

	104
	Contract
	TOR
	Page L-9, Section L.7.1.2.1
	Demonstrated Experience
	Do all examples require 3 years’ experience AND to be within 5 years (meaning the last year of a three year performance must fall within a 5 year period)?  If not all experience needs to be 3 years, what is the minimally acceptable time on contract in order to be considered as a relevant demonstrated experience (e.g. 1 year)?
	One example must be for an experience that was at least 3 years in duration.  Three examples are required as a minimum and all must be recent, defined as within the past 5 years.  One statement is with regard to the duration of the effort, the other is with regard to all references being relatively current, i.e., within the last 5 years.

	128
	Contract
	TOR
	Page L-9, L.7.1.2.1
	Demonstrated Experience
	It is our understanding that the Demonstrated Experience examples can come from prime as well as subcontractors and evaluated equally?  Please confirm. If not true, how many examples are expected of the prime and what would be their weighting vis-à-vis subcontractor examples?
	Yes, at least one example should come from the Prime.  Examples should be work relevant to the solicitation requirements and to the proposed role of the Prime or subcontractor/team member.  A minimum of 3 examples are required (more are acceptable) and of the three, at least one must be for the Prime.

	134
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.7.1.2.1, page L-9
	Demonstrated Experience
	In Section L.7.1.2.1, Demonstrated Experience Examples, page L-9, the second paragraph states “The Offeror’s response shall include at least one example that demonstrates a minimum of 3 years of experience providing large scale cradle-to-grave information technology support services similar in size and scope to the current requirements by the team member (prime or subcontractor) proposed to perform the applicable task/function”. The third paragraph on page L-9 states “Demonstrated Experience examples shall include 3 or more projects performed within the last 5 years by the business unit that proposes to perform the GSA GTO effort.” 

a. Are these two statements mutually exclusive, requiring that the Offeror team provide a minimum of four references? 

b. Or can one of the three references also meet the criteria “demonstrates a minimum of 3 years of experience providing large scale cradle-to-grave information technology support services similar in size and scope to the current requirements by the team member (prime or subcontractor) proposed to perform the applicable task/function,” for a minimum total of three references?
	a. The two statements are not mutually exclusive; L.9 is simply providing additional information regarding the submission of demonstrated experience.  The requirement is for a minimum of three.

b. Yes

Please also refer to the answer to Question Number 104.

	138
	Contract
	TOR
	Sections L.7.1.2.1 and M.3.1.2.
	Demonstrated Experience
	Sections L.7.1.2.1 and M.3.1.2.1 state that “Demonstrated Experience Examples shall include 3 or more projects performed within the last 5 years by the business unit that proposes to perform the GSA GTO effort.  Experience examples are required for the prime and should be augmented by major team members (subcontractors).”  Please clarify if the Prime is required to provide 3 examples, or if the team as a whole must provide at least 3 examples. 
	The team as a whole is required to submit “3 or more” examples of Demonstrated Experience.   At least one should be from the Prime contractor, performing as a prime.

	114
	Contract
	TOR
	Sections L.7.1 and M.3.1
	Evaluation 
	The relative weights for parts 1A, B, and C are different between sections L and M of the solicitation (paragraphs L.7.1 and M.3.1).  Would GSA please clarify how each part is weighted and their relative importance?
	The relative weights are now found only in Section M.

	133
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.7.1
	Evaluation
	Section L.7.1 indicates that “Part 1A is slightly more significant than Part 1B and the combined value of Part 1B and 1C is equal to Part 1A.”  However, Section M.3.1 indicates that “Factors 1A and 1B are of equal weight in this evaluation and the evaluators will look for the relative value they provide to the government.”  Please clarify the evaluation weighting of Part 1A and Part 1B.


	Weighting can now only be found in Section M.   

	242
	Contract
	TOR
	
	Evaluation
	Given that this is being competed under the Alliant Small Business GWAC, are you considering assigning a higher rating to primes who have performed in their own right work that is of similar scope and complexity and relative size?  While we understand that teaming is highly encouraged, the ability to manage both large and small subcontractors is greatly enhanced when the prime has a proven track record as a prime in managing Fixed Price contracts with Performance Based Requirements.
	Offerors are encouraged to present their qualifications in a manner that generates confidence in their ability to deliver the services required.  

	228
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.7.1; TOR Section M.3.1
	Evaluation Weights
	•The Government states the following in L.7.1: “Part 1A is slightly more significant than Part 1B and the combined value of Part 1B and 1C is equal to Part 1A; Part 1C is significantly less than Part 1A and 1B.”

•Then the Government states the following in M.3.1 within Part 1-Advisory Technical Evaluation: “Factors 1A and 1B are of equal weight in this evaluation and the evaluators will look for the relative value they provide to the government. Factor 1C is a consideration of the 1B value determination.”

Will the Government please clarify the discrepancy between Section L directives and Section M criteria so that Offerors may prepare their responses accordingly?
	Weighting can now only be found in Section M.

	135
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.7.1.2.2: 

Team Description Page L-9


	Joint Venture
	Our Alliant Small Business contract is awarded to a Joint Venture (JV). Are JV members considered separate entities for this sections and should we detail the proposed work allocation for each JV member?
	You may present the joint venture in whatever way provides the best exposure for your capabilities.  It may be beneficial to match members and their contributions to demonstrate how each contributes.

	136
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.8.2.2.2: 

Key Personnel Qualification Matrix 

Page L-14
	Key Personnel Matrix
	Will the Key Personnel Qualification Matrices take the place of a requirement for resumes?  Will resumes be required in any parts of the Proposal submission?  And if so, will they be included within the page limitations?
	Yes – Key Personnel Qualifications Matrix will take the place of resumes.  Resumes are not required.

	308
	Contract
	
	Draft TOR, Section L.10,

Page L-17
	Oral Presentation
	In the Draft TOR in Section L.10 Part 3 – Oral Presentations, on Page L-17 the first paragraph after the section heading states that “based on the findings of Part 2 evaluations, selected Offerors shall make an oral technical presentation.”

Will the offerors be required to provide any presentation materials for its Orals Presentation as part of their proposal?
	No, not with parts 1 or 2 of the proposal submission.  Information required for orals will be requested upon notification and invitation to the oral presentation phase.

	309
	Contract
	
	Draft TOR,

Section L.10,

Page L-17 and L-18
	Oral Presentation
	In the Draft TOR in Section L.10 Part 3 – Oral Presentations, in the last paragraph on page L-17 the government states that “the specific details of the problem(s) will be provided to the Offeror’s team on X date on/before of the oral presentation.” The general schedule provided on the top of page L-18 indicates that the government will present the problem(s) during the first ½ hour of the Oral Presentation.

Will the Government please clarify if the problems will be provided in advance of the orals presentation or during the start of the Orals Presentation?
	Some information will be provided in advance to allow the contractor to bring the correct resources and prepare for the oral presentation.  However, in order to assess the ability to solve problems quickly, some scenario information may be provided on the day of the oral presentation as well.

	049
	Contract 
	PWS
	Section C: 

1.3 Assumptions and Constraints
	Page 3 (PWS)
	The Government notes that Cloud Computing services are not a part of this contract and may be acquired separately by the GSA.  Would the Government add additional tasks such as Cloud Computing to this solicitation after the Task Order has been awarded?
	No.  GSA has other sources for these services.

	130
	Contract
	TOR
	Section D.1: Preservation, Packing, Packing, and Marking


	Page D-1
	The Government has asked that the contractor shall deliver all electronic versions by email in electronic formats “compatible with the latest, commonly available version on the market.” Would the Government prefer that we use Microsoft Suite 2007 or 2010 for submission?
	Microsoft 2007 Suite is in use at GSA currently.

	115
	Contract
	TOR
	H.25
	Page H-11

Paragraph 2 on this page
	Where within the Part 2 submission should the Commercial Software statement, if applicable, be placed?
	In Part 2A Technical Approach.

	132
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.6.1,
	Part 1 Technical Submission Requirements Table.  
	In the table, the PWS reference for Part 1A.2 (Client User Services, Directory Management Services, Local Support and an EIT Help Desk) refers to PWS Sections 3.1, 3.2, 3.4, 3.4, and 8.  We believe that the PWS reference for Local Support should be Section 3.5.  Please confirm that this is the correct reference for Local Support.  


	The Submission tables are revised.

	095
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8., M3.3
	Past Performance 
	We recommend that you restructure the past performance review.  Our experience tells us that many civilian agencies do not enter data.  We have been told that GSA doesn’t enter data into PPIRS.   The entering of data to satisfy the PPIRS review requirement L.8.3 is not in the contractor’s control.   To us this seems like an unfair requirement that unnecessarily cuts GSA off from some of the best companies on Alliant Small Business.  A neutral score is not very advantageous.  We strongly urge GSA to replace the PPIRS review with a standard past performance questionnaire and review. 
	The lack of data in PPIRS will not reflect negatively on the company.  The use of CPARS and hence PPIRS is required for GSA procurements however, GSA is also evaluating detailed Contractor provided information in Part 1 Demonstrated Relevant Experience.  By providing examples of work in Demonstrated Relevant Experience interested companies can give more targeted examples of work they have done (for any agency) which demonstrate experience that is closely related to the requirements in this solicitation.  The PPIRS data will be supplemental information to see agency business experience in dealing with the company.  However a Past Performance Questionnaire will be included in the final TOR document.



	096
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8.3, M.3.3
	Past Performance 
	Is GSA going to review only the past performance of the prime?  Current statements in the TOR seem to indicate that.  This seems to be inconsistent with the fact that GSA wants to review the demonstrated experience examples of team members, as well as the prime (L.7.1.2.1).


	The lack of data in PPIRS will not reflect negatively on the company.  The use of CPARS and hence PPIRS is required for GSA procurements however, GSA is also evaluating detailed Contractor provided information in Part 1 Demonstrated Relevant Experience.  By providing examples of work in Demonstrated Relevant Experience interested companies can give more targeted examples of work they have done (for any agency) which demonstrate experience that is closely related to the requirements in this solicitation.  The PPIRS data will be supplemental information to see agency business experience in dealing with the company.  However a Past Performance Questionnaire will be included in the final TOR document.



	102
	Contract
	TOR
	Page L-7; TOR Page L-15, Section L.8.3
	Past Performance
	Does part 2C refer only to the prime contractor?  If not, how does GSA plan to compensate for companies that may not have CPAR?  Understand a neutral rating will not hurt a team but when compared to companies all having PPIRS entries, it appears commercial companies will be at a disadvantage.
	The lack of data will not reflect negatively on the company.  The use of CPARS and hence PPIRS is required for GSA procurements however, GSA is also evaluating detailed Contractor provided information in Part 1 Demonstrated Relevant Experience.  By providing examples of work in Demonstrated Relevant Experience interested companies can give more targeted examples of work they have done (for any agency) which demonstrate experience that is closely related to the requirements in this solicitation.  The PPIRS data will be supplemental information to see agency business experience in dealing with the company.  However a Past Performance Questionnaire will be included in the final TOR document.



	122
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8 &, M3.3:
	Past Performance 
	We have performed work directly for the GSA on large GSA task orders for over 15 years. These Task Orders have been issued under Alliant Small Business and Schedule 70 by GSA’s largest contracting organizations, and PPIRS information has never been entered by GSA. The entering of data to satisfy the PPIRS review requirement L.8.3 is not in the contractor’s control, and organizationally is has not been operationalized by the GSA. This may be seen as an unfair way to limit competition and therefore recommend GSA replace the PPIRS review with a standard past performance questionnaire and review. 
	The lack of data in PPIRS will not reflect negatively on the company.  The use of CPARS and hence PPIRS is required for GSA procurements however, GSA is also evaluating detailed Contractor provided information in Part 1 Demonstrated Relevant Experience.  By providing examples of work in Demonstrated Relevant Experience interested companies can give more targeted examples of work they have done (for any agency) which demonstrate experience that is closely related to the requirements in this solicitation.  The PPIRS data will be supplemental information to see agency business experience in dealing with the company.  However a Past Performance Questionnaire will be included in the final TOR document.



	126
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8.3 and M.3.3
	Past Performance
	Is GSA only going to review the past performance of the prime?  Current statements in the TOR seem to indicate that.  This seems to be inconsistent with the fact that GSA wants to review the demonstrated experience examples of team members, as well as the prime, 
	GSA intends to review past performance for the Prime as well as significant subcontractors (Team members).   

The Past Performance Review is meant to focus on how well the contractor/subcontractor performs in a business setting with government.  Do they deliver, are their customers satisfied, etc.  

The Demonstrated Relevant Experience covers the ability to deliver what this specific solicitation is buying.

	127
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8.3, M.3.3
	Past Performance
	A review of the last 4 PPIRS entries likely would not yield past performance evaluations similar to size, scope or nature of this TOR. We and recommend GSA replace the PPIRS review with a standard past performance questionnaire and review.
	The use of CPARS and hence PPIRS is required for GSA procurements however, GSA is also evaluating detailed Contractor provided information in Part 1 Demonstrated Relevant Experience.  By providing examples of work in Demonstrated Relevant Experience interested companies can give more targeted examples of work they have done (for any agency) which demonstrate experience that is closely related to the requirements in this solicitation.   The PPIRS data will be supplemental information to see agency business experience in dealing with the company.  However a Past Performance Questionnaire will be included in the final TOR document.

	137
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.8.3: 

Part 2C-Past Performance Review

Page L-15


	Past Performance
	a. Does the information that the Government plans to acquire from the Past Performance Information Retrieval System (PPIRS) take the place of any required Past Performance section? 

b. Will the Government require any Past Performance Questionnaires to be filled out by other clients of the Offeror?
	a. No, the PPIRS information will be supplemental.

b. Yes the Government will require Past Performance Questionnaires in the final TOR.



	199
	Contract
	TOR 02_3_12
	L.8.1 

Part 2 Submission Contents
	Past Performance
	The TOR states: “There is no vendor submission required for the Past Performance Review.  It will all be accomplished by use of the Past Performance Information Retrieval System (PPIRS).” Comment: Given that not all customer agencies use the PPIRS, it is suggested to provide an option for past performance information to be submitted via past performance questionnaires submitted directly to GSA by the customer.
	The lack of data in PPIRS will not reflect negatively on the company.  Past Performance is not the only opportunity to show a company’s experience and capabilities.  Demonstrated Relevant Experience is also required.  Offeror submission of Past Performance Questionnaires will be required in the final TOR.

	219
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L
	Past Performance
	Concerning the three-phase procurement process described in Friday’s industry day briefing and the inherent capabilities of the Alliant SB vendors, we recommend that GSA modify the first phase to restrict Corporate capabilities/Past Performance to Alliant SB primes only.  This would more adequately represent the qualifications of the prime contractor to deliver the GTO services with teaming partners adding specific value and credentials instead of carrying the team.
	Phase 1 is meant to judge the entire team, not just the Prime.  Part of that evaluation is the set of partners or sub-contractors a prime can bring to this effort.  

	332
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8.3, M.3.3
	Past Performance
	It is unlikely that a review of the last 4 PPIRS entries would result in past performance evaluations of projects similar in size, scope or nature to the GTO TOR. We recommend GSA replace the PPIRS review with a standard past performance questionnaire and review.
	The review of PPIRS information is required, but will not be limited to the last 4 entries.  A review of comparable projects, if any, will be done.  However, the assessment of a company’s past performance experience will not be limited to the PPIRS review.  A traditional past performance survey will be included in the final solicitation and references will be contacted as well to supplement the past performance information.

	333
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8.3 and M.3.3
	Past Performance
	Is GSA going to review only the past performance of the prime?  Current statements in the TOR seem to indicate that.  This seems to be inconsistent with the fact that GSA want to review the demonstrated experience examples of team members, as well as the prime (L.7.1.2.1)
	No, GSA will assess the past performance of the team and any demonstrated experience information for the team partners should include contact information.  Demonstrated Experience with references for all key team partners should be included even if that exceeds the minimum 3.

	124
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8.1.2 
	Performance Requirements Summary and Performance Metrics
	This section falls under part 2A Technical Approach. However, M3.2.3 and PWS 2.8 place the Performance Requirements Summary and Performance Metrics within 2B Management Approach. Recommend that the government move L.8.1.2 under section 2B Management Approach as well.
	Sections L & M have been markedly revised.  Please carefully review the new documents. We will evaluate these considerations only once as outlined in Section L.

	119
	Contract
	TOR
	L.7 

L.7.1
	Proposal Format
	What file format does the Government prefer to receive from Offerors (e.g., MS Word 2007 / 2010, MS Excel 2007 / 2010, or PDF’s)?
	All Microsoft 2007 Suite versions are acceptable and currently in use at GSA.

	101
	Contract
	TOR
	Page L-11; Section L.8.1.
	Proposal Instructions
	Are font requirements the same for part 1 as they are for part 2?
	Yes. 

	118
	Contract
	TOR
	L.7  L-7

L.7.1
	Proposal Instructions
	Please confirm that the proposal cover, Part 1 transmittal letter, table of contents, list of figures, compliance matrix, and list of acronyms do not count toward the proposal page limitations. 
	Part I proposal cover, Part 1 transmittal letter, table of contents, list of figures, compliance matrix, and list of acronyms do not count toward the proposal page limitations.

	121
	Contract
	TOR
	L.7.1.1

PART 1A - LIMITED CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS (CONOPS
	Proposal Instructions
	Instructions include the phrase “as described in the requirement”. The meaning of the requirement is unclear in this context. It appears to be referring to the PWS or to the table “Part 1 – Technical Submission Requirements”. Please clarify the meaning of the requirement with specific TOR references.
	It is referring to the PWS.

	123
	Contract
	TOR
	L.8.1.1 Key Technical Services

M.3.2.1

FACTOR 2A:  TECHNICAL APPROACH

Paragraph 2
	Proposal Instructions
	Section L.8.1.1 identifies a subset of PWS requirements to be addressed. Section M.3.2.1 states “The Offeror’s technical approach will be evaluated based on the degree to which it demonstrates: … •Technical approach provides a cradle-to-grave solution for all PWS requirements … •All major elements of support are addressed” which appear to require that all PWS requirements should be addressed. Please clarify.
	The requirements of the PWS should be addressed.  However, not every aspect of service delivery could be addressed fully and in detail within the page limitations.

	208
	Contract
	TOR, L Instructions
	Page L-11, Para L-8.1
	Proposal Instructions
	Will GSA consider allowing Font size 8 for graphics?
	That will be acceptable.

	328
	Contract
	TOR Section L & PWS
	Page L-8, Para L.7.1.1 PWS Page 2, Para 1.2
	References
	“Offerors shall summarize their proposed methodology/solution including key success factors and assumptions.  They should address their plans to adjust to the space considerations as described in PWS Section 1.1.1 and Program Goals, PWS Section 1.2, item 6.”

In the Program Goals, there is no “item 6”.  Also there is no Section 1.1.1 in the PWS.  Will GSA please clarify?
	These documents have changed.  Please review the revised document set.  The Section L references have been changed.

	117
	Contract
	TOR
	I.1
	RFQ Revisions
	Will the Government consider the removal of FAR 52.219-8 and FAR 52.219-9 included in the RFP document given that this is a small business contract?
	The Government will remove FAR 52.219-9 Small Business Subcontracting Plan from the TOR.  

FAR 52.219-8 Utilization Of Small Business Concerns (May 2004) will remain.

	120
	Contract
	TOR
	L.7.1.1

PART 1A - LIMITED CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS (CONOPS)
	RFQ Revisions
	“Offerors shall summarize their proposed methodology/solution including key success factors and assumptions.  They should address their plans to adjust to the space considerations as described in PWS Section 1.1.1 and Program Goals, PWS Section 1.2, item 6. “

Question 1a: The PWS does not contain Section 1.1.1 Can the Government please clarify that PWS Section 1.1.1 is referring to Section 1.1: Place of Performance?

Question 1b: There is not an “item 6” listed in PWS Section 1.2. Can the Government please clarify item 6 of the PWS?
	Due to the number of revisions immediately prior to release some PWS Section references are not consistent with the TOR and will be resolved in the final documents.

	166
	Contract
	TOR
	M.3.1.2.1 
	RFQ Revisions
	Text includes the acronym SOC. This acronym does not appear in section L or in the PWS or in the acronym list. Often SOC refers to security operations center which is a capability similar to network operations center but focused on security events rather than performance related events. The PWS does not explicitly include security operations. Does the Government intend that the PWS include security operations? If not, why is this capability included in this section?
	This is being removed from the requirement.  Our Security Operations Center is managed under another contract.  The EIOC, under GTO, will need to interface with this third-party Security Operations Center in the process of managing GSA's network.

	210
	Contract
	TOR, Section M & Attachment P 
	The second Page L-4, Para M-3.1.2.1
	RFQ Revisions
	“The demonstrated experience information must be submitted in the format provided in Attachment L6.”   Attachment L is labeled Acronyms.  Attachment P is demonstrated /Relevant Experience.  Please clarify.
	The references will be corrected.

	211
	Contract
	TOR, Sections L & M
	
	RFQ Revisions
	Numbering throughout the document is a problem.  Will GSA review and fix.  For example, Section M is numbered L-1 through L-12. Section L is numbered L-1 thru L-18.  The table which is on pages L-5 & L-6 has many errors in numbering of paragraphs.  There is no 1.1.1.  We believe section 9 should be 8.
	Yes.  The references will be corrected.

	223
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L
	RFQ Revisions
	Will the Government please confirm that Section M should be labeled with page numbers that read “M-1,” etc. rather than a repetition of “L-1” sequence of pages
	We will correct this formatting error in the solicitation release.

	224
	Contract
	TOR
	Section H.2.2
	RFQ Revisions
	Will the Government clarify the discrepancy between titles for the “Lead Network Program Manager”/”Senior Applications Systems Analyst.”
	The reference to “Senior Applications Systems Analyst” will be deleted from H.2.2.


	225
	Contract
	TOR
	 Section L.8.1.2 PRS, Performance Metrics; TOR Section J.1
	RFQ Revisions
	The Government describes the “Service Level Agreement/Performance Metrics Format” as Attachment J in Section J.1. The Government later describes a template for SLAs as Attachment K. Neither were provided in the original set of attachments. Will the Government please provide the cited “SLA Template”/“Service Level Agreement/Performance Metrics Format” to allow Offerors to develop their responses in accordance with the desired Government template?
	All Attachments will be available in the release of the solicitation.

	226
	Contract
	TOR
	Section L.8.2.2.2
	RFQ Revisions
	Will the Government please provide the template for the “Key Personnel Qualification Matrix” as Attachment V was not provided?
	All Attachments will be available in the release of the solicitation.

	048
	Contract
	PWS
	Section C.6.8.2, page 13
	Scope
	Application and Integration Support was included in the RFI Draft PWS as an Optional subtask.  It does not appear to be included in the draft RFP scope. Can you confirm that it is not included or if it is GSA’s intent to include that scope, can you expand on the requirements?
	Application and Integration Support is not part of the GTO requirement and has been removed.

	245
	Contract
	TOR
	
	Teaming
	GSA provided its proposed approach and timeline for the solicitation at the pre-proposal conference held on Friday, 2/10, which included a phase 1 approach for submitting a CONOPS and team composition experience.  With a program of the size and scope of GSA’s GTO, the prime contractor will need to clearly demonstrate its ability to perform as a prime for the contract.  By submitting the qualifications of the entire team, GSA will not as easily identify those primes capable of managing potentially large teams with large subcontractors. 

Further, after phase 1 of this procurement, subcontractors who are teamed with primes who are encouraged not to continue with submission under phase 2 will be excluded from further competition, as industry teams will already be solidified and CONOPs will have already been submitted.

As such, we highly recommend that phase 1 submissions require only the prime contractor to submit its qualifications to lead and manage an effort of this size, as well as their experience performing in the areas of the statement of work, without requiring the support of what will likely be large teams. This will benefit GSA and industry by identifying capable prime contractors during the first phase and will also enable industry to select and form teams that will best meet the needs of the contract, after the initial determination has been made.
	Phase 1 is meant to judge the entire team, not just the Prime.  Part of that evaluation is the set of partners or sub-contractors a prime can bring to this effort.  No one is excluded from the competition after Phase 1; it is an advisory down-select.  Offerors should seek to offer a solid team from their initial submission.

	046
	Contract
	PWS
	2.12
	Transition
	Will the Government provide the incumbent contractor’s Transition-Out Plan to assist the Offerors to prepare a complementary Transition-In Plan?
	Yes the GSA will provide the incumbent Contractor’s Transition-Out Plan to the awardee after it is reviewed and received.  However GSA cannot at this time provide a date for availability.  Should the plan become available before phase 2 of this solicitation, the government will consider making it available to allow Offerors to make modifications to their proposal.

	047
	Contract
	PWS
	Attachment A PWS 2.12.2

8  All
	Transition
	Does the incumbent Contractor have the same or similar transition out language in their current contract in order to facilitate the transition in of the new contractor? 
	Yes.  The Plan is for the outgoing Contractor to assist the incoming Contractor to establish service to the “as is” or steady state, then to “transform” to the incoming Contractor’s solution.

	230
	Contract /

GPO Oversight
	TOR
	Section L.3
	GTO Program Management Support
	Will the Government provide further insight into how GSA envisions/intends the business relationship to function between the awarded contractor and the 3rd party group charged with Quality Control?
	The 3rd party vendor will assist in the monitoring of the deliverables and services and advise the government.  The government will make all determinations regarding the quality of all outputs, deliverables and services.  The contractor may have to interact directly with the 3rd party vendor to provide data or regarding the resolution of issues but generally the government will facilitate.

	216
	Contract / GTO Oversight
	PWS
	
	GTO Program Management Support
	What are the anticipated service/task areas to be required for the eventual GTO Program Oversight task?
	GSA anticipates using the services of a Third-Party contractor for Advisory and Assistance (A&A) services in coordinating oversight and monitoring of program office requirements and Contractor performance under this Task Order (TO), to include any of the contracted GTO outputs, deliverables and services. 
The currently anticipated tasks under the GTO PMO are:

· Transition Support (from GITGO to GTO)

· Quality Assurance Surveillance Plan

· Project Tracking, Oversight and Evaluation 

· Analysis Support

· Technology Assessment

· Strategic Communications Plan

· Post-Implementation Review

	217
	Contract / GTO Oversight
	PWS
	
	GTO Program Management Support
	What is the difference between Analysis and Advisory (A&A) services cited in current RFP and the Program Oversight services to be procured? If different, how are they related?
	They are meant to refer to the same kind of skill set, though applied to different aspects of the operation.  The GTO Program Management support contractor shall provide overall project management support for GSA of the GTO contract, which includes independent analysis of GTO operations, quality assurance reviews of all deliverables, financial tracking, and analysis of invoices.  The Contractor shall also provide real time IV&V of IT Service Desk tickets, IT Service Desk operations, and minimal performance standards as indicated in the GTO Performance Requirements Summary and SLAs.  

	051
	Data Center
	PWS
	3.1.3
	
	Please provide a database inventory including DBMS vendor, the version/ build number of the DBMS, the server or SAN reference name/ number, and the number of databases per DBMS.
	While Attachments have been provided to include considerable information about GSA operations, it is neither possible nor desirable to provide all levels of detail.  The Contractor will be given the opportunity to delve more deeply in the transition period, when they are expected to survey and baseline operations.

	050
	Data Center
	PWS
	3.1
	Client/User Services
	Please provide a listing of the in-scope applications showing the name and any reference number, agency or department, description, version, installation site, service level category, associated databases, number of interfaces and list any “major” interfaces, reference name/number of associated servers, type of installation (production, test, development, etc.) source (e.g., in house developed, shrink-wrapped, current support arrangements, etc.) and configuration standards.
	Just for clarity, this is an IT Infrastructure support contract and aside from the software listed in Attachment 29 GSA Approved Standard Software application development or support is beyond the scope of GTO.  The awardee will need to survey the systems during the Transition period. 

	321
	Data Center
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3.2,

Page 12
	HVAC
	In the Draft PWS on page 12 in Section 3.3.2 Data Center Support, the government states that the contractor shall “Coordinate all HVAC changes with the government staff.” 

Is there another contract outside of GTO that is responsible for all physical HVAC maintenance activities?
	Contracts exist to support all physical HVAC maintenance activities. GSA’s HVAC contracts were awarded separately for its various locations. 

	322
	Data Center
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3.2.3,

Page 13
	HVAC
	In the Draft PWS on page 13 in Section 3.3.2.3 Work Product/Deliverable under Data Center Support, the government states that the contractor shall provide “Updated HVAC diagrams (to include updated floor space, and rack space diagrams”.

Are there current diagrams and what format are they in? (i.e.: VISIO)
	GSA has Netzoom diagrams showing rack elevations for all but one of its data centers that can be exported to Visio, pdf and other formats.  It does not have a consolidated repository of HVAC diagrams, but many are available from GSA’s facilities department in CADD format.



	003
	Data Center
	As-is environment
	
	Mainframe
	Nowhere in the provided documents can we find the specifications for the mainframe environment. Would the Government please clarify the following specifications:

· What are the mainframe IT environments (z/OS, z/LINUX, etc.)?

· Where do they exist?

· Are they owned and maintained by GSA, or outsourced to a 3rd party

· What are the approximate ‘size’ of these mainframes (IBM model numbers, installed MIPS, etc.)?

· What are the current plans to grow/shrink this hardware environment?
	GSA mainframe support is not part of the GTO scope.  These data centers use the GSA network backbone so network connectivity status to these centers will be part of the monitoring requirements for GTO, however.

	319
	Data Center
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3.2,

Page 12
	Power
	In the Draft PWS on page 12 in Section 3.3.2 Data Center Support, the government states that the contractor shall “Ensure that the Consolidated Data Center power supply will supply DC current to run all hardware under all loading conditions.”

Is it the contractor’s responsibility to calculate and monitor power consumptions and report to the government when a pre-determined threshold of capacity is reached and recommend additional capacity is added?  Please clarify.
	As part of its life-cycle, project and change management responsibilities the contractor is expected to identify power requirements for equipment it is planning to install and, per this same section, coordinate with facilities maintenance personnel and GSA staff to ensure the load can be supported.

GSA is in the process of installing meters in each of data centers that will monitor power consumption, but that is at the data center level as a whole.

	320
	Data Center
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3.2,

Page 12
	Power
	In the Draft PWS on page 12 in Section 3.3.2 Data Center Support, the government states that the contractor shall “Ensure that the Consolidated Data Center power supply will supply DC current to run all hardware under all loading conditions.”

Is the power distribution equipment provided as GFE?  Please clarify?
	PDUs will be provided as GFE.

	053
	Data Center
	PWS
	3.3.2.2

Constraints
	PUE Levels
	Item #1 states: “Maintain a PUE rating of 2.3-2.5.” Additionally, the As-is document states that GSA will reach a PUE rating of 1.8 by 2013. Question: Are current GSA Data Centers operating at a PUE of 2.3 to 2.5?
	GSA’s best estimate is that we are currently working at 2.3 to 2.5 level.  However, the Chantilly Data Center is functioning at 1.8 already.  Ft Worth and Kansas City Centers are not yet metered.  It is likely that the 2013 date will change but the target of achieving 1.8 is the desired PUE rating.

	288
	Data Center
	PWS
	3.3.2 Data Center Support, bullet #8
	PUE Levels
	Please provide the results of the last audit and its findings relative to the current PUE for each “in-scope” data center.
	GSA’s best estimate is that we are currently working at 2.3 to 2.5 level.  However, the Chantilly Data Center is functioning at 1.8 already.  Ft Worth and Kansas City Centers are not yet metered.  It is likely that the 2013 date will change but the target of achieving 1.8 is the desired PUE rating.

	312
	Data Center
	PWS
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3, Page 11 and 12


	PUE Levels
	In the Draft PWS on page 11 in section 3.3 Server Services, the government states the desired PUE is 1.8, however on page 12 under Data Center Support the requirement is to “maintain a PUE rating of 2.3-2.5.”

Would the Government please clarify the requirement?
	GSA’s best estimate is that we are currently working at 2.3 to 2.5 level.  However, the Chantilly Data Center is functioning at 1.8 already.  Ft Worth and Kansas City Centers are not yet metered.  It is likely that the 2013 date will change but the target of achieving 1.8 is the desired PUE rating.  The requirement is the range given and considered realistic for now, but the goal remains 1.8.

	324
	Data Center
	PWS
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3.2.2,

Page 12
	PUE Levels
	In the Draft PWS on page 12 in Section 3.3.2.2 Constraints under Data Center Support, the government states that the contractor must “maintain a PUE rating of 2.3-2.5”.

What is the Consolidated Data Center’s current PUE rating?
	GSA’s best estimate is that we are currently working at 2.3 to 2.5 level.  However, the Chantilly Data Center is functioning at 1.8 already.  Ft Worth and Kansas City Centers are not yet metered.  It is likely that the 2013 date will change but the target of achieving 1.8 is the desired PUE rating.

	313
	Data Center
	
	Draft PWS, Section 3.3.2, 

Page 12
	Staffing
	In the Draft PWS on page 12 in section 3.3.2 Data Center Support the government states that responsibilities include “Act as the liaison” and “coordinate” with facilities maintenance personnel and GSA staff. This would include both government staff and other contractors supporting GSA.

Is there a count by Data Center of these staff and their specific roles and responsibilities?  If so, would the Government please provide?
	The number of personnel and their roles/responsibilities would vary depending on activity at the locations.  Points of contact information for daily O&M activities will be made available following award.

	323
	Data Center
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3.2.1,

Page 12
	Tier III
	In the Draft PWS on page 12 in Section 3.3.2.1 Desired Outcome under Data Center Support, the government states the desired outcome “Data Centers maintain the Consolidated Data Center TIER 3 facility rating as ascribed by the Uptime Institute”.

Are the current data centers achieving a Tier 3 rating?
	No.  They are currently categorized as Tier II facilities.



	294
	Data Centers
	
	PWS 3.5.4
	
	Who is responsible for cabling in non-GSA owned facilities (i.e. Savvis Data Centers)?
	The GTO Contractor will not be responsible for internal operations of non-GSA owned facilities.

	236
	Data Centers
	PWS
	PWS Section 3.3.2.1
	Certifications
	Item number 3 indicates that the contractor will support and annual certification report indicating ITIL V3 capability. Is the current operation ISO 20000 certified? Will the contractor be required to support a ISO 20000 audits during the performance period or is the annual certification report something else?
	At this time there is no initiative to apply for any particular ISO standard certification or to have such certification through the Uptime Institute program.  However, the agency’s goal is to meet ITIL v3 standards and to incrementally improve by moving toward implementation of ISO 20000 processes.

	285
	Data Centers
	
	PWS 3.3 p 11, Para 2, First sentence
	PBS
	Is management of GSA PBS regional servers for PBS applications in scope? (Y/N)
	Yes, they are within scope as an option. Please see the answer to question 084

	010
	Data Centers
	As-Is-Environment
	Attachment 9 

Network Inventory List.pdf
	Servers
	Will GTO support Network LANs within non-Government facilities such as Terremark and Savvis? What and where are the facilities? Will they provide hands & feet support? What are the access restrictions? Are they supported 24x7?
	The Contractor will have no responsibility, other than to report connectivity (up/down), for those facilities.  

	017
	Data Centers
	N/A
	
	Servers
	Under the GSA-GTO-OCIO contract, how many servers are in the current environment by location (Physical and Virtual)?
	Attachments to the As-Is provide additional information.

	018
	Data Centers
	N/A
	
	Servers
	How many servers are in the Regional Data Centers to be managed under this contract apart from Kansas City and Ft. Worth?
	Currently there are 14 Regional Data Centers.  Should the option for PBS Data Centers be exercised, it would become 15.  Attachments to the As-IS  will provide additional information on servers and locations.

	055
	Data Centers
	PWS
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3,

Page 11
	Servers
	In the Draft PWS on page 11 in Section 3.3 Server Services, the government states that the “Contractor shall provide technical, administrative and operations support services for GSA’s Server Management Infrastructure and Data Centers….”

a. What is the total number of servers to be supported under this contract, including BMC servers? 

b. What operating systems are these servers running?
	a. As-Is Attachments provide additional information.

b. OS includes Windows 2000 through Windows 2008, UNIX and Linux.

	A
	Data Centers
	PWS
	PWS Section 3.3.2.1
	Tier III
	Are both the Kansas City and Fort Worth data centers currently certified Tier III data center? Will the contractor be expected to support additional certification audits during the performance period or just maintain the Tier III requirements through any changes being made?
	Neither the Kansas City nor Ft. Worth data centers are certified by the Uptime Institute as Tier III data centers.  The intent of the subject PWS Section is to convey GSA’s requirement for these two data centers to be maintained in a manner consistent with the Institute’s Tier III certification level.  The reference to certification in sub-paragraph 3 is in regards to ITIL v3, not the Uptime Institute’s certificate program.  

	234
	Data Centers / Consolidation
	PWS
	PWS Section 3.3
	Consolidation
	The section list only 2 data centers in Kansas City and Fort Worth. Also stated is the anticipation of performing one consolidation during the performance period. Are there other data centers that the contractor must take over and then consolidate?
	GSA’s current plan for the Federal Data Center Consolidation Initiative is to close twelve regional data centers by the fourth quarter of Fiscal Year 2015 either by consolidating their existing applications and data stores into Kansas City and Ft. Worth, or by other means (e.g. cloud storage).  Three regional data centers are currently in the final stage of completion.  The completion schedule for the remaining nine are as follows: 

Q4/2012 (2)
Q4/2013 (2)
Q4/2014 (2)
Q4/2015 (3)


	286
	Data Centers / PBS
	
	PWS 3.3.2 Data Centers
	Servers
	Please provide the list of Servers and SAN devices to be supported by GTO? Please include the PBS Data Center information.
	Attachments provide additional information.

	038
	Data Centers / Security
	PWS
	Section 3.3, page 11
	Security
	The section states that server support services for GSA’s Server Management Infrastructure and Data Centers consist of “security,” among other requirements.  What security services are required?
	The Contractor is responsible for maintenance of the system IAW GSA Policy, i.e. patch and configuration management.

	019
	Data Centers /Consoled.
	N/A
	
	Consolidation
	How will the consolidation of servers affect the total number of physical and virtual servers managed under the GSA-GTO-OCIO contract apart from Kansas City and Ft. Worth?
	GSA’s current plan for the Federal Data Center Consolidation Initiative is to close twelve regional data centers by the fourth quarter of Fiscal Year 2015 either by consolidating their existing applications and data stores into Kansas City and Ft. Worth, or by other means (e.g. cloud storage).  Three regional data centers are currently in the final stage of completion.  The completion schedule for the remaining nine are as follows: 

Q4/2012 (2)
Q4/2013 (2)
Q4/2014 (2)
Q4/2015 (3)


	056
	Data Centers /Consolidation
	PWS
	11.1
	PBS Data Center Operations and Maintenance
	PBS Data Center Operations and Maintenance (11.1) the suggests that PBS data centers may be included in this acquisition.  Question: What process does GSA propose to use to add this, if selected, to the acquisition, and will more detailed information on requirements be forthcoming for pricing purposes?
	PBS Data Centers will be added via Optional Services and additional information will be made available at the time of option execution.

	057
	Data Centers /Consolidation
	PWS
	Attachment A 1.1 
	Space
	This section states, “new contract solicitations will require the Contractor to designate a location other than a GSA facility as the primary place of performance. While initially this policy will only apply to GSA offices in the Washington, DC Metro Area, …  Eventually this policy will be extended to the entire agency” Will GTO contractor staff whose work assignments require them to be full time in a Government facility such as a data center for access to hardware be provided with Government work space. 
	Yes.  If physical space within Government buildings is required to perform support activities, the government will provide space.  Any work that can be done outside a government building should be done as such.   The Contractor shall justify all requests for space in a government facility.

	044
	General IT
	PWS
	Section 5
	
	What is the approximate percentage of work that is typically charged back to GSA customers?  
	Right now the charge back is not based on actual usage of a particular segment of the GSA organization.  This is a future goal to allow a truly equitable charge based on actual organizational use.

	113
	General IT
	TOR
	Section L.7.2.2     PART 1A

Limited Concept of Operations
	
	“Offerors should address the Program Goals of the PWS and demonstrate how they are ready to adapt and adjust their management and operations based on the GSA’s goals and future direction.”

Will the Government please clarify if the Offeror should map out specific cost reduction roadmap items or if achieving program goals should be discussed as it pertains to specific target areas? 
	Offerors should provide as much insight into their capabilities to minimize cost, improve processes, and enhance services.  Your Concept of Operations should include proposed approaches.

	299
	General IT
	
	Attachments 2 and 3
	
	What is the difference between Attachments 2 and 3?  Both seem to refer to customer locations
	Attachment 2 is PBS Buildings with automated systems.  Attachment 3 is customer locations.  We will label them accordingly.

	302
	General IT
	
	Attachment 12 VoIP 

Customer Locations
	
	Attachment 3 GSA Customer Locations is identical to Attachment 12 VoIP Customer Locations. Is there a VoIP Phone for every computer?
	There is NOT a VoIP for every computer.  The VoIP Attachment was eliminated.

	334
	General IT
	PWS
	
	Asset Management
	There are two references to “asset management” in the slide deck presented at the conference and posted on the GTO portal.  Slide #28 shows “Asset Management” in the list of functions under the heading Enterprise IT Service Help Desk, which implies that this is a function carried out by the GTO contractor.  Then slide #35 shows “Asset Manager” under the title of Government Roles and Responsibilities.  This appears to contradict the reference in slide #28 as well as the following in the PWS:  5. Asset Management and Inventory Management Support.  “The Contractor shall provide ITIL-based asset management support…”  Please clarify the requirement for the GTO contractor to perform asset management and how the contractor’s role interfaces with the government’s roles and responsibilities.
	The Government does provide an asset management role.  The Government is responsible for procuring, inventorying, adding legal documents to the asset management system, then turning it over to the contractor to manage from cradle to grave.  When the asset reaches end of life, the contractor will wipe hard drives and provide the assets back to the government for proper disposal.  The Contractor’s role is a support role, as the Government is accountable for the accounting of all assets.

GSA uses their CA software to track assets.  GSA establishes appropriate records as part of provisioning.  The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining those records as changes occur.  Record keeping for the last 4 years has been performed according to established procedures. Records older than 4 years are in an unknown condition.

	093
	General IT
	TOR
	
	Capacity Management
	Would the Government please indicate if there is an established Capacity Management Framework (Capacity Planning and Performance Management) in operation?  What is the current level of maturity and what are the expectations moving forward? (Has it been externally assessed, vis-a-vis ITIL, CMMI?)

Is there a desired Capacity Management maturity roadmap?  

Is there a defined Service Catalog of Capacity Management PWS deliverables that are expected to be delivered ongoing as part of the service to GSA?  E.g.:  Capacity Plans, Capacity Risk Based Assessments, Performance Reporting Framework
	GSA does not currently have an established Capacity Management Framework in operation.  Going forward into the GTO contract GSA expects the winning vendor to help it achieve a state of maturity in this area by their adherence to the ITiL v3 framework, the demonstration of their Key Personnel’s’ proficiency in that framework and the knowledge and expertise their company brings to bear by way of its ISO 20000 certification.

See deliverable W26 as called for by paragraph 6.2 for the PWS deliverable.

	200
	General IT
	TOR 02_3_12
	L.7.1.3 

Part 1c -

	Certification(s) ​
	The TOR states: “…Company Certifications are required by the Contractor Team.” Question: Will GSA clarify that the certification can be issued at the corporate, organization, or contract level within a company to be compliant with this requirement?
	The certifications should be aligned to the segments of the company proposing to provide services under the contract, which could be at any of the levels mentioned, depending on the company.

	139
	General IT
	TOR
	L.7 L-10

L.7.1.3 Table
	Certifications
	Will the Government consider amending the requirement for a current ISO 27001:2005 certification to a requirement for the contractor to achieve ISO 27001:2005 certification within 12 months of award?
	GSA believes that the requirement for a current certification is a reasonable expectation and necessary to achieve the long term goals of increased effectiveness and efficiency in IT operations envisioned by this solicitation.  The requirement will remain.

	141
	General IT
	TOR
	Page L-10, L.7.1.3 PART 1C
	Certifications
	Are all there certifications required by the bidding Team? If not, are all three ISO certifications evaluated equally
	Yes, the three certifications listed in L.7.1.3 are required of the bidding Team.  Not all members must have all three certifications.   

	142
	General IT
	TOR
	Page L-6, Part 1.C – 


	Certifications
	Will GSA consider adding CMMI Level 3 to the list of certifications and give it equal evaluation value as ISO Certifications?
	No.  GSA believes that the requirement for current ISO certifications is a reasonable expectation and necessary to achieve the long term goals of increased effectiveness and efficiency in IT operations envisioned by this solicitation.  Offerors are encouraged to add any additional credentials, but the ISO Certifications are required of the bidding Team.

	143
	General IT
	TOR
	Ref L.7.1.3, PART 1C
	Certifications
	Since CMMI Level 3 is a superset of management process that include the Quality Management System (QMS) process/artifacts covered by ISO 9001, and many vendors have made a conscious decision to obtain CMMI Level 3 certification instead of ISO 9001, we believe the requirement for ISO 9001 should be changed to include ISO 9001 or CMMI Level 3. That ensures GSA will receive equally superior QSM process, if not better
	The ISO certifications remain a requirement of this solicitation for the bidding Team.  Offerors are encouraged to add any additional credentials.

	029
	General IT
	PWS
	Section 1.2, item 2
	Collaboration Tools
	“Support a highly mobile workforce and deploy greater coverage at remote sites (increased use of real-time and team-based collaboration tools).”

Would the Government clarify which based collaborative tools are envisioned and/or desired? 
	Those currently would include Webex, Google tools, personal and enterprise VTC, Sharepoint, and others today.  GSA continues to search for the best of breed of these applications.  As such, in the coming years, the tools that we use today will likely morph into as of yet not released collaboration tools to integrate with or to supersede some of those used today.  

	033
	General IT
	PWS
	Section 3.1, Item 2
	Collaboration Tools
	Could the government define “Collaboration Capabilities Support” – what is the system of standard – SharePoint, Google Docs, Etc.?
	Those currently would include Webex, Google tools, personal and enterprise VTC, SharePoint, Salesforce, and others today.  GSA continues to search for the best of breed of these applications.  As such, in the coming years, the tools that we use today will likely morph into as of yet not released collaboration tools to integrate with or to supersede some of those used today. 

	062
	General IT
	PWS
	Attachment A-PWS Section 2.7
	Communications Plan
	Is the Customer Communication Plan to be submitted with the proposal? If yes, in which part and subpart? Will the plan be excluded from the page limitation?
	No. The Communication Plan is expected to be delivered at Date of Award (DOA) plus six months (see GTO Section F.5, Table2, Deliverables. The Transition-In Plan has communications aspects as well.  

	041
	General IT
	PWS
	Section 3.3.4, item 8
	COOP
	In relations to providing Local Support, would the Government clarify how that line between Disaster Recovery Support and Local Support would impact metrics/SLAs? 
	In the event of a Disaster reasonable accommodations would be made to suspend normal SLAs and performance metrics.  The Government does not intend to hold contractors unreasonably accountable.  We expect Offerors to provide a best practice solution.

	042
	General IT


	PWS
	Section 3.3.4, page 15
	COOP
	Which systems, applications, and sites are considered critical for COOP and DR activities?  What are the metrics for COOP test success?
	This is considered sensitive information and would be provided upon contract award.

	060
	General IT
	PWS
	3.3.4 Continuity of Operations (COOP) & Disaster Recovery Support
	COOP
	Which, if any, Agency requirements do not currently have an adequate DR Plan?
	Plans for Continuity of Operations and Disaster Recover are in place for all major operations, but require updates and revisions as with any documentation. 

	061
	General IT
	PWS
	Attachment A PWS 3.3.4.1

16

#4
	COOP
	What is the COOP recovery time requirement under the current GITGO contract?
	Basic connectivity within 12 hours and phase I support in 24 hours.

	289
	General IT
	PWS
	3.3.4 COOP & Disaster Recovery, bullet #2
	COOP


	Please provide a description of current DR exercises and tests including specific test scripts, number and extent of DR exercises per year.
	One test is performed per system per year.  The other information requested is sensitive and will be provided to the winning contractor after award.

	290
	General IT
	
	PWS 3.3.4 COOP & disaster recovery, bullet #7
	COOP
	Please provide the RPO and RTO requirements for each application and critical files that require data redundancy.
	This is considered sensitive information and will be provided upon award.

	325
	General IT


	
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.3.4.1,

Page 16
	COOP
	In the Draft PWS on page 16 in Section 3.3.4.1 Desired Outcomes (COOP), the government states a desired outcome is to “Be operational no later than 12 hours after activation”

Does the current GFE infrastructure support a Recover Time Object of 12 hours?
	Yes.

	326
	General IT
	PWS
	Section 3.3.4.1,

Page 16
	COOP
	In the Draft PWS on page 16 in Section 3.3.4.1 Desired Outcomes (COOP), the government states a desired outcome is to “Be operational no later than 12 hours after activation”  What is the Government’s desired Recover Point Objective?  
	The answer to this will depend on the specific situation that necessitated a COOP event to be declared.

	097
	General IT
	TOR
	Page F-3, Deliverable D-01
	Deliverables
	TMP is included in the technical volume page count and addressed but D07 Architecture Management Plan is not.  Please clarify whether D07 should be included and if so, how it fits into both sections L and M.
	The table of deliverables is for post-award, not for inclusion with the proposal and therefore not a concern with the proposal submission page limitations.  The Architecture Management Plan will eventually be incorporated into the GSA approved Contractor Program Management Plan.

	237
	General IT
	PWS
	General PWS
	Desired Outcomes
	The Government has provided insight into how overall objectives and program goals have influenced specific technical task areas through the “Desired Outcomes” sections. Understanding that many objectives would be further discussed and clarified at the time of contract award, would the Government presently be able to provide any further detail on the timelines and criteria associated with the “Desired Outcomes,” i.e. if GSA sees it as a short, mid, or long-term objective.
	We look forward to industry’s input into prioritizing and planning to meet these objectives and goals.

	045
	General IT
	
PWS
	Section 8, page 25
	EITM
	This section states that the GSA EITM has “Security Management” functionality.  CA Unicenter provides some security management, primarily in user management and user authentication, but not significant security finding management.  What component of the EITM actually provides security management tools?  Is this a solution GSA would like the contractor to propose?
	The CA Unicenter features are Unicenter Asset Portfolio Management (UAPM), Unicenter Service Desk (USD), and Unicenter Desktop and Server Management (DSM), which all provide security functionality in deployment, asset tracking and management.  Offerors are encouraged to propose their best judgment in providing security management services.

	027
	General IT
	PWS
	PWS 6.3
	Lab
	PWS 6.3 speaks to the creation and maintenance of a lab.  Is this lab to be at contractor or government site?  Assuming contractor, and given HW/SW is not part of this contract, how should this be priced?
	The lab would be located at the Contractor’s site, but would be furnished with government-furnished hardware and software.    See also the answer to question number 054.

	054
	General IT
	PWS
	Ref. PWS, Section 6.3: 


	Lab
	Are the software/hardware and other non-personnel resources required to operate and manage Enterprise IT LAB GFE? Can you please explain what is GFE and what is Contractor furnished?


	The government intends to provide the necessary hardware and software and network connectivity.   Furnishings and office equipment are to be provided by the Contractor.  GSA is looking for innovative solutions.  The Offeror would indicate what they would expect would also be needed and Contractor provided.

	215
	General IT
	PWS
	
	Policy and Process Support
	a. To what extent does the GTO Program Office (Government) establish policy and business process? 

b. To what extent will the GTO PMO contractor be expected to support these activities?
	a. The Government is responsible to establish all policy and will work with both the GTO and GTO Program Management support Contractors to determine the optimum business processes.

b. The GTO Program Management support Contractor shall provide overall project management support of the GTO contract, which includes analysis of GTO operations, quality assurance reviews of all deliverables, financial tracking, and analysis of invoices.  The GTO GM support contractor shall also provide real time IV&V of IT Service Desk tickets, IT Service Desk operations, and minimal performance standards as indicated in the GTO Performance Requirements Summary and SLAs.

	317
	General IT
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.4.3, 

Page 18 and 9
	Reporting
	In the Draft PWS on page 18 in section 3.4.3 Work Product/Deliverables for Enterprise IT Service Desk item number 3 – Daily status of all backups (W-18) and item number 5 – Quarterly GSA Standard Image (updated) (W-19) appear to coincide to section 3.1 Client/User Services on page 9.

Would the Government please clarify if these two items are in the correct place?
	The deliverables are under EIT Service Desk.

	037
	General IT
	PWS
	Section 3.2.1, page 10
	Single Sign-On
	The section states that “single sign-on” and several other items are “desired outcomes” for Directory Management Services.  Are the capabilities currently in place at GSA, or are they to be implemented during this GTO task order?
	More than one solution is available for Single/Simpler log on.    The solutions will have to be reevaluated and a better service offering needs to be developed.   The timing of that is unknown.

	140
	General IT
	TOR
	L.7.1.2.1


	SOPs
	Current Completeness, What is your evaluation of the current status of completeness of SOPs, processes and other documentation?
	Documentation is always a work in progress and is continuously being reviewed, improved, and expanded.  

	246


	General IT
	TOR
	L.8.2.3 
	Transition
	Can the existing Transition Out Plan submitted by InfoPro to GSA be made available in order to better plan coordination for transition in?
	The incumbent contractor is Catapult.  Yes the GSA will provide the incumbent Contractor’s Transition-Out Plan to the awardee after it is reviewed and received.  However GSA cannot at this time provide a date for availability. Should the plan become available before phase 2 of this solicitation, the government will consider making it available to allow Offerors to make modifications to their proposal.

	006
	Help Desk 

/Service Desk
	As-Is-Environment
	
	PBS
	Attachment 21.  Please clarify “responsibility” levels if meant to be directed to the government or the bidder.


	The Chart provides the division of responsibilities between the Office of Chief Information Office (OCIO) and the Public Building Service (PBS) so that contractors will know who has which roles in regards to various components in the IT infrastructure serving GSA.

	004
	Help Desk

/Service Desk
	As-Is-Environment
	
	Staffing
	Attachment 6.  Please provide other examples to provide a more robust foundation for staffing.


	Attachment 6, the OCFO Help Desk Report, provides detail on the weekly flow of tickets escalated by the OCFO Service Desk to government subject-matter-experts (Tier 2) for resolution.  The detail on ticket volumes by application and related staffing pertains to Tier 2 activity.  Attachment 28, the OCFO Monthly Report, would probably be more useful for estimating Service Desk (Tier 1) staffing requirements because it shows monthly contact and ticket volumes (most recent month plus five previous mos.) handled at the Service Desk / Tier 1 level, as well as other relevant data.  

	005
	Help Desk

/Service Desk
	As-Is-Environment
	
	Staffing
	Attachment 14.  Please provide at least other examples to provide a more robust foundation for staffing.


	No additional examples are anticipated.  The statistics cover July 2010 to June 2011 and should be adequate.

	043
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	PWS
	Section 5
	Asset Management
	The PWS section 5 mentions the deployment of an asset management system however earlier in the solicitation; it mentions this may be separately procured?  Would GSA provide clarity on this item?
	The asset management system is already in place and any replacement will be separately procured.  We expect the GTO Contractor to run and maintain this system.  GSA uses their CA software to track assets.  GSA establishes appropriate records as part of provisioning.  The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining those records as changes occur.  Record keeping for the last 4 years has been performed according to established procedures. Records older than 4 years are in an unknown condition.

	282
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	
	PWS 3.3
	Asset Management
	a. Can GSA provide a complete inventory by site? Please include any storage devices and back-up inventories! 

b. Can GSA also provide a full listing of all back-up schedules and completion rates?  Include the number of job abends and restarts.  Also include the average times that back-up jobs do not complete within the scheduled window.
	a. GSA’s inventory resides in the EITM, which requires updates from the GTO Contractor as well as an annual physical inventory for validation and correction.  Attachments were added to the As-Is-Environment to provide additional details on the kinds and numbers of hardware and software components.

b. GSA will make current schedules and records available to the incoming Contractor after award.  GSA currently does not track to the level of restarts, abends, etc. for backups.  We currently track an overall % completion rate which is currently 97%.

	316
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 5,

Page 22
	Asset Management
	In the Draft PWS on page 22 in section 5 Asset Management and Inventory Management Support, the last sentence of the first paragraph in section 5 stats “The contractor shall support annual reviews for completeness and accuracy.”

Does this requirement mean the contractor will conduct annual physical?  Please clarify.
	GSA uses their CA software to track assets.  GSA establishes appropriate records as part of provisioning.  The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining those records as changes occur.  Record keeping for the last 4 years has been performed according to established procedures. Records older than 4 years are in an unknown condition.

An annual physical inventory of IT assets is required of the GTO Contractor.

	164
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	TOR
	Page H-6, H.5.1 – 


	EITM
	Should bidders assume that the EITM used for the GTO contract will be CA Unicenter? Should bidders anticipate a change in EITM during the base period of the contract?
	Currently GSA uses the CA Unicenter suite.  An evaluation, using ServiceNow (a web based service) is underway.  If the effort shows promise, there will be a transition to ServiceNow for those functions it provides. A decision is expected by March 1. However, some functionality is expected to be continued with CA Unicenter, resulting in a hybrid solution until web based products are enhanced to meet all functional needs.  

	233
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	PWS
	Section 8
	EITM
	The contractor will be required to use the Government provided EITM tool suite. Can the government provide a timeline for when the cloud based EITM tools will be in production for use by the Enterprise IT Service Desk? Will the contractor be required to implement this transition to the cloud based tools?
	Currently GSA uses the CA Unicenter suite.  An evaluation, using ServiceNow (a web based service) is underway.  If the effort shows promise, there will be a transition to ServiceNow for those functions it provides. A decision is expected on/about March. However, some functionality is expected to be continued with CA Unicenter, resulting in a hybrid solution until web based products are enhanced to meet all functional needs.  

	291
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	
	PWS 3.5 Local Support p22 - 23
	Enterprise IT Service Desk
	Do any of the ancillary or additional help desks Go Live at the same time as the main help desk?
	Any help desks already incorporated and supported with the current Service Desk (such as OCFO) must also be included in the transition to a new Contractor.  The term ancillary has been replaced in the PWS with a clearer explanation.  

	231
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	PWS
	Section 3.4
	Hardware
	a. Will the government provide the equipment for the Enterprise IT Service Desk and the facility/building or does the contractor have to provide this? 

b. If the contractor is to provide, what CLIN should be used? 

c. What location will be required for the Enterprise IT Service Desk?
	a. GSA will provide all PCs and PC software (in a Contractor-provided facility) that are used to resolve issues so that user experience can be replicated.  Other equipment, furnishings, etc. will be provided by the Contractor.

b. This is an overhead expense that should be allocated to the firm fix price CLIN in proportion to the allocation to the contract.  If this is a service desk that is used by multiple customers, that allocation should be across all customers.  The government does not expect to pay for contractor-acquired items that will become government property at the completion of the task.

c. The location is the Contractor’s choice.

	091
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	PWS and TOR
	
	Service Desk
	Would the Government please clarify the relevant level of service expectations between the terms “Service Desk” and “Help Desk” given that they are used differently within and across the TOR and PWS?
	Generally speaking the Enterprise IT Service Desk is the overarching entity that contains IT Enterprise Support and several other "Help Desks" (which are more narrowly focused).



	300
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	
	Attachment 6 Help Desk Report for September 2011 p1
	Volume
	What are the Subject Matter Expert queues?  

Are their ticket counts included in the Service Desk Weekly activity at the top of the report
	Subject Matter Expert queues are Tier 2/3 support provided by Government experts and/or the application vendor. 

Yes.

	301
	Help Desk / Service Desk
	
	Attachment 6
	Volume
	Is there any percentage breakdown on how the calls arrive (by phone, Email, Web, or other)
	The ratio is variable but in January 2012 the split was approximately 50/50 calls vs. emails for the OCFO Service Desk.

	022
	Help Desk / Service Desk / Network
	PWS
	
	Capacity Management
	As touched on above, to deliver services in the Capacity Management arena, we will need access to component metrics (E.g. Operating system, DBMS, middleware etc.), hardware and software configuration information as well as “business driver” metrics.  Are there any restrictions as to whether or not capacity information can be processed at the contractor’s remote facilities (i.e. take the data off-site)?
	See Table 1 – Applicable Security Standards, in the PWS, Section 8.1.1.2 provides relevant guidance as to whether information may be processed at the contractor’s remote facility.  

	147
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	TOR
	Page L-5, L.6.1
	EITM
	What is the required GSA Software tool for Help Desk?
	Currently GSA uses the CA Unicenter suite.  An evaluation, using ServiceNow (a web based service) is underway.  If the effort shows promise, there will be a transition to ServiceNow for those functions it provides. A decision is expected on/about March. However, some functionality is expected to be continued with CA Unicenter, resulting in a hybrid solution until web based products are enhanced to meet all functional needs.  

	007
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	As-Is-Environment
	Attach B As-Is OCFO Service Desk Support p30
	Enterprise IT Service Desk
	Is it GSA’s desire that the GTO contractor assume responsibility for the OCFO Service Desk function? If so, will this be part of core services or considered one of the ancillary services desks to be integrated as an optional project?
	Additional service desk functions will be integrated as projects.  Yes, the GTO contractor will have full responsibility for the OCFO Service Desk operation and assume cradle-to-grave ownership of end-user incidents related to OCFO-managed applications as an already incorporated service exists.  It was originally referred to as an ancillary service desk in the “As Is Environment”, and is part of the consolidated enterprise help desk operation currently supported by the GITGO contractor.  Going forward, the OCFO Service Desk will be included within the contract scope from inception.  In the future, additional service desk functions will be integrated as projects. The term ancillary has been replaced in the PWS and replaced with a clearer explanation.  

	065
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	PWS
	3.4
	Enterprise IT Service Desk
	Item #6 states: “The Contractor shall provide a mechanism for coordinating separate ancillary Service Desk activities such as VIP service and application support for those ancillary service desks.  These services often involve a separate contact number and support personnel, including Contractor and Government application subject matter experts (SMEs).  Additional service desks are likely to be added over the course of the contract.” Question: What specific ancillary/additional service desks are included within the scope of this contract?
	The OCFO Service Desk is one of the service desks that will be included within the scope of the contract from inception since it is already established as a part of the Enterprise IT Service Desk today.   Contract personnel assigned to this desk will be specialized, i.e., trained to provide Tier 1 support to users of the applications described in Table 5 of the “As Is Environment”.  The Service Desk will escalate Tier 2+ issues to government subject-matter-experts in the OCFO and assume cradle-to-grave ownership of end-user incidents.  The responsibility for the VIP service desk has already transitioned to the current contractor and will be part of the core services.  

The following help desks are already part of GITGO 

GITGO IT Service Desk

PBS National Applications Helpdesk

Rexus (formerly STAR...falls under the PBS NAH umbrella now)

PBS Server Team

GITGO NOC

OCFO Service Desk

FAS Analysts (Former users of Bugzilla with some new additions)

FAS Networx

FAS eTools

FAS Fleet (to be implemented in Service Now, not currently in USD)

Additional service desk functions will be integrated as projects.  The key to this requirement is that coordination/communication with other support personnel should be anticipated and that the goal, over the course of the new contract, is to centralize any additional service desk under GTO.    We will be modifying the solicitation for greater clarity in the final release.  The term ancillary has been replaced in the PWS with a clearer explanation.  

	146
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	TOR
	L.6.1 

THREE PART PROCESS p L-5
	Monitoring
	Is it intended or acceptable for the “monitoring facility service desk” to be combined with the Enterprise IT Service Desk?
	Yes.  Offerors are encouraged to find the most effective and efficient means of providing high quality service.   The government is looking for the best design.

	016
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	Attachment D
	N/A
	Performance Requirement Summary
	To what extent are the Service Levels that need to be met by the Service Desk different from the current service levels?
	The question is not relevant to the new support being solicited.  The Attachment is meant to show a proposed set of performance measures or, more directly, to propose possible measures.  It is hoped that Offerors will propose their own measures, which are innovative and effective in monitoring performance.  This is one of the areas where GSA seeks innovation to meet the goals of the PWS.  Performance Standards will be a point of eventual negotiation with the awardee.  Upon award the Contractor will be provided an opportunity to perform baseline measurements in preparation for further negotiation of the Service Level Agreements.

	063
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	PWS
	2.8.2
	Problem Notification
	Section 2.8.2 states: “The contractor shall notify the government of all problems that affect service offerings.  The contractor shall submit a written Problem Notification Report (W-06) within 24 hours of identification of the problem and a Root Cause Report (W-05) within 3 business days after the resolution of the problem.” Question: Can this be reclassified as a Major Incident Notification to avoid confusion with ITIL Problem Management?
	The forms referenced are the standard forms for the Alliant contract.  The government’s intent is to be notified of “outages” affecting a large number of customers, critical facilities, etc. Regardless of the language being used, the purpose of this statement is to ensure that a notification is provided to GSA major problems or incidents (something that should be relatively infrequent).  Such an occasion would represent an outage (such as a server or switch) where service is impacted for multiple customers.   Such notification should be considered part of the regular procedure for such events.

	144
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	TOR
	Draft TOR

Section L.6.1, 

Page L-6
	Reference
	In the Draft TOR on page L-6 in Section L.6.1 Three Part Process in Part 1 – Technical Submission Requirements, Part 1A Factor: Limited Concept of Operations, Number 2, the Government refers to PWS Section 8 EIT Help Desk. Section 8 in the PWS is GSA IT Management (EITM) Tool. 

Did the Government intend for our response to cover PWS Section 8, GSA Enterprise IT Management (EITM) Tool or PWS Section 3.4 Enterprise IT Service Desk?  Please clarify.
	The reference should have be to the Enterprise IT Service Desk.  This table is being revised.

	145
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	TOR
	Draft TOR

Section L.6.1, 

Page L-6
	Reference
	In the Draft TOR on page L-6 in Section L.6.1 Three Part Process in Part 1 – Technical Submission Requirements, Part 1A Factor: Limited Concept of Operations, Number 1, the Government refers to PWS Section 9 EITM. Section 9 in the PWS is Enterprise IT Infrastructure Support of as Needed Capabilities. 

Did the Government intend for our response to cover PWS Section 8, GSA Enterprise IT Management (EITM) Tool?  Please clarify.
	The reference should be the PWS section associated with EITM Tool.  This table is being revised.



	036
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	PWS
	Section 3.1.3 last sentence
	Reporting
	What metrics will be required to push into services dashboard?
	Once the contract is awarded, GSA will work with the Contractor to establish this dashboard, but Offerors need to propose what metrics are appropriate for the dashboard.

	066
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	PWS
	L.7.1.2.1

Demonstrated Experience Examples, paragraph
	Users
	The Offeror shall specifically address team experience in operating/monitoring a world-wide infrastructure network, providing information technology incident handling desk support services, and managing a Tier 3 facility supporting at least 20,000 users or between 15,000 – 20,000 users? Question 2: Can the Government please confirm if the requirement is for “…at least 20,000 users …” or “… between 15,000 – 20, 000 users…”
	This will be changed in the solicitation to an estimated 17,500 users in all references.  

	103
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	TOR
	Page L-8, Section L.7.1.2.1
	Users
	Ref L.7.1.2.1 states: “Tier 3 facility supporting at least 20,000 users or between 15,000 and 20,000 users.  M.3.1.2.1 states 20,000. To facilitate effective evaluation of past performance, will the Government please clarify the inconsistency between these numbers?
	This is being changed in the solicitation to read 17,500 users.

	148
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	TOR
	Section L.7.1
	Users
	Section L.7.1.2.1 indicates that “The Offeror shall specifically address team experience in operating/monitoring a world-wide infrastructure network, providing information technology incident handling desk support services, and managing a Tier 3 facility supporting at least 20,000 users or between 15,000 – 20,000 users??.”  Please clarify if the requirement is 20,000 users or between 15,000 and 20,000 users.


	This will be changed in the solicitation to an estimated 17,500 users in all references.  

	212
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	TOR/PWS
	various
	Users
	GSA has used a variety of numbers when describing the users.  Some use 15,000 while in other places 20,000 is used.  Would GSA please clarify the current number of users?
	This will be changed in the solicitation to an estimated 17,500 users in all references.  

	307
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	
	Draft TOR,

Section L.3, Page L-9
	Users
	In the Draft TOR in Section L.7.1.2.1 Demonstrated Experience Examples, at the end of the second paragraph on page L-9 the government states that the offeror shall demonstrate experience  “managing a Tier 3 facility supporting at least 20,000 users or between 15,000 – 20,000 users??”  

Would the Government please clarify this requirement and whether the offeror needs to be demonstrating management of at least 20,000 users or between 15,000 – 20,000 users or some other number of users?
	The estimated number of users will be modified to 17,500.  

	014
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	Attachment 28
	August OCFO Monthly Reports
	 Volume
	We noted resolutions rates exceeding 100% for the OCFO help desk. How are these calculated?
	Resolution Rate = Total tickets resolved during the “current” month divided by Total tickets created during that month.  The numerator can include tickets created during previous months as well as the current month as long as they were resolved during the current month, while the denominator can only include tickets created during the current month.  This sometimes results in a resolution rate greater than 1.

	064
	Help Desk /Service Desk
	PWS
	3.4
	Volume
	Item #4 states: “The contractor shall support GFE to the device level and personal equipment to the connection level, i.e. the contractor shall make a "best effort" to assist personnel using personal equipment.” Question: What is the estimated number of tickets per month for 'Best effort" to assist personnel using personal equipment? What are the historical numbers for this metric?
	The number of tickets per month of this nature fluctuates, though it is currently on the increase.  No separate historical information is available.  As we have recently started providing additional methods that allow GSA employees to use their own devices, the number of tickets continues to increase.  However, the method of reimbursement for service being proposed should allow appropriate compensation.  The terminology “best effort” refers to the limitations of remote assistance in line with our teleworking policy and the wide variety of devices possibly being used.

	067
	Help Desk /Service Desk - Inventory
	PWS
	5 
	Asset Management
	Question: What is the process and data flow by which the Asset Management system is populated?
	GSA uses their CA software to track assets.  GSA establishes appropriate records as part of provisioning.  The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining those records as changes occur.  Record keeping for the last 4 years has been performed according to established procedures. Records older than 4 years are in an unknown condition.

	068
	Help Desk /Service Desk - Inventory
	PWS
	5
	Asset Management and Inventory Management Support
	Question: How are software licenses tracked today and is the software tracked to support the enterprise?
	GSA uses their CA software to track all licenses.  

	069
	Help Desk /Service Desk - Inventory
	PWS
	5
	Asset Management and Inventory Management Support
	Question: What is the process and data flow by which the Asset Management system is populated?
	GSA uses their CA software to track assets.

	013
	Help Desk /Service Desk - SLAs
	Attach D (Performance Requirement Summary)
	
	SLAs
	Are these Performance Standards currently implemented?  If yes, will GSA provide current performance levels?  Are there any penalties applied to the current contract?
	The question is not relevant to the new support being solicited.  The Attachment is meant to show a proposed set of performance measures or, more directly, to propose possible measures.  It is hoped that Offerors will propose their own measures, which are innovative and effective in monitoring performance.  This is one of the areas where GSA seeks innovation to meet the goals of the PWS.  Performance Standards will be a point of eventual negotiation with the awardee.  Upon award the Contractor will be provided an opportunity to perform baseline measurements in preparation for further negotiation of the Service Level Agreements.

	209
	Help Desk /Service Desk & Contract
	TOR, Section L
	Page L-9, Para L.7.1.2.1 4th paragraph

L.7.1.2.1
	Demonstrated Experience Examples


	 “Demonstrated Experience examples shall include 3 or more projects performed within the last 5 years by the business unit that proposes to perform the GSA GTO effort.  Experience examples are required for the prime and should be augmented by major team members (subcontractors).  These projects must be similar in size, scope, and complexity to the requirements identified in Section C.”  (“managing a Tier 3 facility supporting at least 20,000 users or between 15,000 – 20,000 users?”)

This is announced under Alliant Small Business GWAC.  Does GSA expect Small Businesses to meet the size requirement of 15-20,000 users on a single contract?  Or are you expecting a Large Business subcontractor to meet this size requirement?  
	a. GSA is seeking contractor support from teams who have experience providing IT services that are similar in scope to the work to be performed.   GSA would expect the Team member proposed to perform the work related to user support to be able to meet the size requirement.

b. Contractors are free to make whatever teaming arrangements they feel necessary that will allow them to submit a proposal that will meet the Instructions to Offerors and evaluation criteria.

c. The size requirement will be modified to approximately 17,500 users in the final TOR.



	015
	Help Desk /Service Desk -SLAs
	Attachment 28
	August OCFO Monthly Reports
	Enterprise IT Service Desk
	Attachment 28 provides data on the OCFO help desk. Is it anticipated that this help desk will be consolidated into the consolidated enterprise service desk and if so, what is the timeline?
	The OCFO Service Desk is already part of the consolidated Enterprise IT service desk operation currently supported by the GITGO contractor.  Going forward, it will continue to be included within the scope of the contract from inception.   Contract personnel assigned to this desk will be specialized, i.e., trained to provide Tier 1 support to users of the applications described in Table 5 of the “As Is Environment”.

	161
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.8: 

Non-Key Personnel Requirement

Page H-5
	Certifications
	This section states that “Contractor’s Project Managers shall be certified in accordance with the Project Management Institute (PMI) Project Management Book of Knowledge (PMBOK) 4th Ed as Project Management Professionals.”  However, only within the description of 2 of the Key Personnel positions state that a PMP is required (H.2.1 and H.2.4).  Can you confirm whether or not PMI certification is required for all Key Personnel listed in H.2?  
	Yes, PMI Project Management Professional (PMP) certification is required by all Key Personnel and anyone acting as a Project Manager.

	331
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	L.2.8
	Certifications
	H.2.8 The Draft TOR states that all Project Managers require PMP certification.  Do all of the Program Managers requirement PMP certification as well.  
	All Key Personnel require PMI PMP certification.

	150
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2.4
	Help Desk Program Manager 
	What type of PMI Certification are you requiring?  If you mean PMP, why is this necessary?


	PMI Project Management Professional (PMP) certification is required.

	152
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2.4
	Help Desk Program Manager
	Does PMI certified mean “PMP” certified? If so, this requirement seems unusual for a help desk manager and may be seen as a limit to competition. 
	Yes.  PMI Project Management Professional (PMP) certification is required.

	153
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2.4
	Help Desk Program Manager
	Lead Help Desk Program Manager: “Certified ITIL Manager”, does the government mean the ITIL V2 certification, please clarify, and if so, it this a relevant certification? It is the government’s intent that a “ITIL Manager” certification is required in addition to a HDI or similar certification?
	All Key Personnel must be grounded in ITIL and maintain certification for the highest version of ITIL for the category appropriate to their positions. HDI certification is also required for the Help Desk Program Manager.

	201
	Key Personnel
	TOR 02_3_12
	H.2
	Key Personnel
	GSA provides qualifications for the key personnel. Could GSA also provide the duties and responsibilities envisioned for these key personnel such as are found in position descriptions?
	The Government does not intend to dictate the composition of the ideal team or duties and responsibilities of Contractor personnel to perform this task order.  

	157
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H2.5 and H.2.6
	Lead Hardware Program Manager
	”The Lead Hardware Program Manager is required to have the ITIL v3 Expert certification, but the “Lead Network Program Manager and “Lead Systems Program Manager” qualifications have no ITIL certification requirements. Requiring advanced certifications for only a certain key personnel, when the entire staff must demonstrate ITIL experience, may be seen as an arbitrary way limit to competition or may be reflective of the exact staff performing today. We recommend ITIL v3 certifications at least the Foundations level for all key positions and demonstrated experience to meet the government’s requirements. 
	All Key Personnel must be grounded in ITIL and maintain certification for the highest version of ITIL for the category appropriate to their positions.  The solicitation is being amended to require, at a minimum, ITIL v3 certification at the Foundations level.

	202
	Key Personnel
	TOR 02_3_12
	H.2
	Lead Hardware Program Manager
	The Lead Hardware Program Manager qualifications currently indicate the requirements for specialized Oracle eBusiness Suite R12 architecture, design and implementation experience in High Availability Architecture and knowledge/experience integrating Oracle Access Manager/OID with Oracle eBusiness Suite for smart card authentication. Oracle specific qualifications are also required for the Lead System Program Manager and the Lead Information Assurance/Security Program Manager.  In the PWS Oracle is only mentioned once, under the optional task 11.2 Building Monitoring and Control (BMC) Support and is one of four operating systems listed. Question: Please provide some input into the Oracle eBusiness task and/or the justification for the highly specific qualification for multiple key personnel and how it maps to the PWS.
	The requirement for Oracle expertise is being removed.

	203
	Key Personnel
	TOR 02_3_12
	H.2
	Lead Hardware Program Manager
	The Lead Hardware Program Manager qualifications as currently written require ITIL v3 Expert certification. Comment: Within an overarching ITIL v3 service management framework, the ITIL expert normally resides at a higher level of the organization such that ITIL processes and IT Service Management encompass all aspects of the program. It is suggested that the ITIL expert requirement be included but that the Offeror determine, as part of its solution, how best to provide this expertise within the staffing plan and solution. It is also suggested, given GSA’s desire for solutions and innovation with respect to key outcomes and program objectives, that the offeror be provided latitude to propose the optimal staffing plan to execute the proposed solution, to include qualifications and experience of key personnel in technical leadership positions.
	The requirement remains as stated except that the requirement for Oracle expertise is being removed.

	277
	Key Personnel
	
	H.2.5
	Lead Hardware Program Manager
	H.2.5 currently requires the LEAD HARDWARE PROGRAM MANAGER to possess ITIL v3 Expert certification. While Expert-level certification is desirable and could be used as an evaluation criterion, as a screening criterion it unnecessarily limits a pool that may include applicants with Oracle, Linux or other certifications and experience equally valuable to GSA. Recommend substituting ITIL v3 Intermediate certification in Service Capability.
	The criteria remain except that the requirement for Oracle expertise is being removed.

	154
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2.5, H.2.6. H.2.7
	Lead Hardware Program Manager, Lead Systems Program Manager, and Lead Information Assurance/ Security Program Manager
	Requirements for Red Hat Linux and Oracle R12 for a Lead Hardware Program Manager, for the Lead Systems Program Manager, and the Lead Information Assurance /Security Program manager do reflect not industry standards.  Requiring these on a pass/fail basis will limit your competition and impede companies with significant experience and capabilities from bidding.  If these capabilities are truly required from these personnel or those functional areas,  may be suggest that you modify the TOR to either require these personnel to attain these capabilities within the first 12 months of contract; or to demonstrate that other people, such as project managers, on the team have these capabilities.  Your retaining this requirement in the TOR will lead us to believe that the solicitation is being directed to a very specific contractor and that you are not interested in competition.  


	The requirement for Oracle expertise is being removed.  There is only a requirement for Red Hat Linux expertise for the Lead Hardware Program Manager position.

	151
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2.4

H.4
	Lead Help Desk Program Manager
	This section notes that the staff member must be “Certified ITIL Manager”. We would like to request that GSA confirm that this certification is ITIL v3 Managing Across the Lifecycle certification. If not, please provide on the certification and version of ITIL.
	All Key Personnel must be grounded in ITiL and maintain certification for the highest version of ITIL for the category appropriate to their positions.  The solicitation is being amended to require, at a minimum, ITIL v3 certification at the Foundations level for all personnel.



	156
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H2.4
	Lead Help Desk Program Manager
	What does the government mean by “Certified ITIL Manager?”  Would this be in addition to an HDI or similar certification? 
	The Lead Help Desk Program Manager is required to have HDI certification as well as the highest version of ITIL certification for that category of support.

	276
	Key Personnel
	
	H.2.4
	Lead Help Desk Program Manager
	We respectfully recommend changing the requirement for the Help Desk Manager to HDI and ITIL certifications as these are more oriented to the operational nature of the role.  The ITIL hierarchy has been recently updated and the current equivalent to the ITIL manager certification is the ITIL Intermediate certification if OSA (Operations Support & Analysis) or Service Capability Stream.
	The Lead Help Desk Program Manager is required to have HDI certification as well as the highest version of ITIL certification for that category of support.

	159
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.4
	Lead Help Desk Program Manager requirements.  
	This section indicates that this position requires “Project management proficiency with the knowledge skills, tools and techniques required to implement the services comprised by the IT Infrastructure Library (ITIL* V3) In depth knowledge of ITIL practices and must be currently PMI certified.”  Which PMI certification is required?


	PMI Project Management Professional (PMP).

	099
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Page H-5,  Section H.2.7
	Lead Information Assurance / Security Program Manager
	The final two qualifications indicate the Lead Information Assurance/Security Program Manager must have both a MCSE and a CISSP.  Please confirm that the inclusion of MCSE is required?
	This is being changed from MCSE to MCITP as the required credential.

	107
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.7, page H-5
	Lead Information Assurance / Security Program Manager
	The title of the security lead is “Lead Information Assurance/Security Program Manager,” but it is unclear what role the contractor will play in Information Assurance for GSA.  Please expand on the requirements for Information Assurance support.
	The Information Assurance/Security Program Manager should develop and implement information assurance/security standards and procedures.  They should develop, coordinate, and evaluate security programs; recommend information assurance/security solutions; and identify, report, and resolve security violations across the Enterprise.

	279
	Key Personnel
	
	H.2.7
	Lead Information Assurance/ Security Program Manager
	H.2.7 currently states a requirement for the LEAD INFORMATION ASSURANCE/SEDCURITY PROGRAM MANAGER to be certified as Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE). MCSE has been replaced by Microsoft Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP). This certification would be more appropriate for the lead of an engineering team developing solutions as opposed to a leader/manager responsible for IA/Security. The CISSP certification is certainly relevant and valuable and a reasonable screening criteria but neither the MCSE or MCITP requirement are reflective of IA/Security professionals working in the field in similar operations and does not allow for similar Linux, Oracle or other certifications that could be used as evaluation criteria equally valuable to GSA.
	The requirement for MCSE is being changed to MCITP as the required credential.

	098
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Page H-2, Section H.2.2. 
	Lead Network Program Manager
	First line refers to “Senior Applications Systems Analyst”.  Should this be “Lead Network Program Manager”?
	Yes.  This will be corrected.

	275
	Key Personnel
	
	H.2.2
	Lead Network Program Manager
	H.2.2 requires the LEAD NETWORK PROGRAM MANAGER to be Cisco certified as either a Cisco Certified Design Professional (CCDP) or Internetwork Professional (CCIP). We recommend that a more appropriate screening criterion for Cisco certification for a manager would be CCNA or CCNP where the manager must demonstrate knowledge and has sufficient skill to direct a team of engineers with higher certification levels. Those with leadership/managerial skills for larger, more diverse efforts will tend to focus on project management and leadership/managerial skills. 

The CCDP or CCIP certifications are more appropriate for the lead of an engineering team developing solutions as opposed to a leader/manager responsible for operations. As engineers progress, those with a technical orientation tend to gravitate toward the higher level certifications leading small to medium size teams in solution development. H.2.2 also describes ITIL experience which should be codified as ITIL V3 Foundation certified.
	The requirement remains as stated except that the requirement for Oracle expertise is being removed.

	278
	Key Personnel
	
	H.2.6
	Lead Systems Program Manager
	H.2.2 currently states a requirement for the LEAD SYSTEMS PROGRAM MANAGER to be certified as Microsoft Certified Systems Engineer (MCSE). MCSE has been replaced by Microsoft Certified Information Technology Professional (MCITP). An MCITP certification would be more appropriate for the lead of an engineering team developing solutions as opposed to a leader/manager also responsible for operations. As engineers progress, those with a technical orientation tend to gravitate toward the higher level certifications leading small to medium size teams in solution development. Those with leadership/managerial skills for larger, more diverse efforts will tend to focus on project management and leadership/managerial skills. With this in mind, and recognizing the diversity of the GSA environment, more appropriate screening criterion for systems certification would be MCITP(or previous), Red Hat Certified Engineer (RHCE), Linux Professional Institute Certification 2 (LPIC-2) or Oracle Certified Professional (OCP) with experience or lesser certifications in the other software environments that make up the GSA environment.
	The criteria remain except that:

· The requirement for Oracle expertise is being removed. 
· The requirement for MCSE is being changed to MCITP as the required credential.

	160
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.8
	Non-Key Personnel Certifications
	This section indicates, “In addition, Contractor's Project Managers shall be certified in accordance with the Project Management Institute (PMI) Project Management Body of Knowledge (PMBOK) 4th Ed as Project Management Professionals (PMP).”  Please clarify if Program Managers and Project Managers are the same thing.  Please also note that the Program Manager requirements identified in the previous sections as Key Personnel do not include PMP certification as a requirement.


	Program manager and project manager are not the same.  The term Program manager is used to note a greater level of responsibility associated with the Task Order Program Manager and key personnel who are also expected to assume a greater level of responsibility.  However  Project Management Professional (PMP) certification is required of all Key Personnel as well as contractor personnel whose job responsibilities include estimating and managing project type work associated with providing IT services under the contract.  

Non-Key Personnel could be Project Managers.  

Everyone should have taken and been certified in the Foundation Level course for ITIL.   

	188
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2: 

Key Personnel 
	Security
	Can you specify what security clearance requirements need to be fulfilled for each of the Key Personnel listed in H.2.1-H.2.7?
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC



	189
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2

H-1

KEY PERSONNEL
	Security
	We would like to request that GSA define security clearance levels for each key personnel.
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC area.  Additional attachments are being provided to show the process and procedures for transferring clearances from other agencies to GSA.

	149
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H.2.1  
	Task Order Program Manager 
	What type of PMI Certification are you requiring – PMP?


	PMI Project Management Professional (PMP) certification is required.

	155
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	H2.1
	Task Order Program Manager
	Does PMI certified mean PMI Project Management Professional “PMP” certified? 
	Yes

	158
	Key Personnel
	TOR
	Section H.2.1
	Task Order Program Manager requirements
	This section indicates that the TO PM must have “Project management proficiency with the knowledge skills, tools and techniques required to implement the services comprised by the IT Infrastructure Library (ITIL* V3). In depth knowledge of ITIL practices and must be currently PMI certified.”  Which PMI certification is required?
	PMI Project Management Professional (PMP).

	214
	Key Personnel certs
	TOR/PWS
	
	Lead Hardware and Lead Help Desk Managers
	It is our understanding from the pre-bid discussion and as specified in the TOR requirements that the ITIL certification is only required for the Lead Hardware Program Manager and Lead Help Desk Manager positions. Please verify.
	All Key Personnel must be grounded in ITIL and maintain certification for the highest version of ITIL for the category appropriate to their positions.  The solicitation is being amended to require, at a minimum, ITIL v3 certification at the Foundations level.

	213
	Key Personnel certs
	TOR/PWS
	
	Lead Help Desk Program Manager
	Based on our understanding of the current PWS and the TOR the previous Drafts and the Q&A at the pre-bid conference, the HDI professional certification (HDM) is required for the Lead Help Desk Program Manager at the individual level and that there is no requirement for the company to be certified at any level by the Help Desk Institute. Please verify.
	Yes, that is correct.  The Lead Help Desk Program Manager is required to have HDI certification as well as the highest version of ITIL certification for that category of support.  This is not a company certification.

	292
	Local Support
	
	PWS 3.5 Local Support p24
	
	What is meant by concierge / walk up support?  Do all sites need to provide this level of support?
	The Government is contemplating a store front solution where people can bring in their equipment when there are issues and pick up a loaner until they are contacted that their hardware issue is resolve or where they can come and ask questions and get quick answers on “How do I?” type questions.  These would not be at all sites and we expect the Offeror to propose a best practice solution.

	072
	Local Support
	PWS
	3.5.4.1
	Cables
	Question: Please provide a list of the regions without cable contractors.
	We do not have any standing contracts except in one region.  In your proposal, assume no standing contract.  We look forward to the Offerors’ solutions to provide this support requirement.

	026
	Local Support
	PWS
	General
	Devices
	Devices supported – Can the Government please clarify the scope and size of devices supported for GSA end-users that Offerors will be responsible for supporting.
	A list of current devices will be provided as an Attachment.

	081
	Local Support 
	PWS
	Attachment A 3.1.2 

Constraints item 4 #
	Hardware
	a. In item #4 GSA mentions “deliver a replacement GFE”. Can GSA describe how that process works today? 

b. Does GSA have an image lab or stage lab where new units are configured and shipped to users?
	a. For PC replacement parts, they are delivered and installed by our supplier.  New PCs are centrally imaged by the GITGO Contractor in the Washington, DC area.  Only domain and locally required software are done at the destination site.  GSA is working to move even imaging to the supplier and this should be in place before the transition period is complete.

b. A central facility is used to image PCs. 

	293
	Local Support
	
	PWS 3.5 Local Support p24
	Hardware
	Are On-site Break Fix Services in scope for Local Support?  

If so, is the awarded vendor required to procure and provide parts as part of their solution effort and FFP price?
	Yes, to some extent on-site repair is required. Most equipment is under warranty so that failed hardware items such as a mother board, memory, disk drives, and monitor are replaced by OEM warranties, sometimes requiring a loaner to be issued while the repair is made. Some unique equipment may require OEM or 3rd parties to install replacements.  Regarding network equipment covered by Cisco SMARTnet maintenance, replacement components are shipped to GSA for installation and GTO contractor personnel would be responsible for replacing the failed components. Items not on warranty or under contract for maintenance (not the usual situation) will require GSA to research and determine whether to purchase parts and service or replacement units.  Note:  The Contractor will need to assist with printer repairs in some cases.  GSA hopes to move toward a managed printer service in the near future. 

The GTO Contractor is not required to procure or provide parts as part of their solution.

	295
	Local Support
	
	PWS 3.5.4
	Hardware
	If the GTO vendor will be required to support desktop peripherals (e.g. printers, external drives, etc.) can GSA provide a list of quantities and models that are deployed?
	Yes support to desktop peripherals is required.  

	025
	Local Support
	PWS
	General
	Locations
	Locations supported - PWS only mentions two specific areas and then has a question mark but then in other areas talks to users through the US...- Can the Government please clarify?
	This reference will be corrected in the released solicitation.  Attachments will provide all locations.

	232
	Local Support
	PWS
	Section 3.5
	Locations
	Item number 5 outlines local support for two cities. Are there other locations requiring local support? Also the local support for these special cities was different due to XXXX – can the government please clarify this?
	This will be clarified in the solicitation.  We expect a presence in Regional Office Building (ROBs) and in the two Federal Acquisition Service (FAS) warehouse distribution sites at Sharpe, California and Burlington, New Jersey.

	281
	Local Support
	
	PWS 1.3.4
	Locations
	Where are the two European Support Personnel located? What travel is required?
	The current support is located in Stuttgart, Germany, with two government employees. They provide support to all European sites, traveling only when an onsite presence is required.

	241
	Local Support
	
	
	Parking
	Will there be a few parking spaces allocated at NCR locations for the GSA-GTO contractor to minimize response time?  If yes, is there a fee for this parking space?
	No parking spaces will be provided at any of the National Capital Region locations.

	002
	Local Support
	AS IS
	Page 37, Para 9.2
	Refresh
	When does the next desktop Refresh Cycle start?  What is the GSA server refresh cycle?  How is the Server/Storage and Network Switches/Routers refresh cycle managed?
	GSA is currently exploring extending the PC refresh cycle from 3 to 4 years.  However this is not a monolithic effort across the enterprise at the same time.  As equipment ages and funds allow, refreshes are pursued.  Frequent equipment issues (or lack of problems) can also cause earlier or later replacement.  Offerors should consider this effort an on-going one, rather than a set time frame.   

Regarding Network Switches/Routers, the refresh cycle is on an as-needed basis and is managed according to network requirements.  Typically, the refresh cycle for these network devices is 3 to 5 years.

Efforts to increase the efficiency of refreshes and to minimize the outlay of staff hours are another area where creative input from Offerors is entertained.  

	070
	Local Support
	PWS
	3.5
	Staffing
	Item #5 under Local Support indicates that local support will be required to special sites in Sharpsburg and Burlington which require a different staffing model. Question: Please provide more details on the support requirements for these special sites.
	Currently we support Sharpe Depot, California with two employees on site coverage from 6:30 am to 3:30 PM.  Additional assistance is provided by Region 9 (San Francisco) Local Support contract techs until 6:30 pm.   Weekend on-call support is provided by a Blackberry technician (rotated among SF technicians).  We also have phone tree support with all parties to ensure that we all have communication during issues.
During the Fire Season (5/1 thru 10/31) - technicians rotate the start time for more coverage.  We also provide on-call support for coverage on weekends if support is needed during the fire season.  If assistance is needed to be on site on weekends, Government staff is deployed.
The Eastern Distribution Center in Burlington, New Jersey is supported with one Technician onsite from 7:15 am - 3:45 pm.  This support is required every day.  Backup support is provided by Region 3 (Philadelphia, PA).   Support required before or after onsite technician hours can be handled by the Region.  The close proximity allows the Region to deploy to Burlington if needed.  Priority tickets that come in after regular business hours are handled by the on-call technician.   If the on-call technician is unavailable a call down list is used to reach managers.

	073
	Local Support
	PWS
	Attachment A 3.5.2 Constraints (1) p19
	Staffing
	This line requires the provision of Local Support personnel on-site at all designated sites in Attachment 3. However, Attachment 3 lists many sites that have too few users (many just 1) to justify the expense of an on-site support technician. Would it be acceptable for our solution to use past experience to determine the locations and staffing necessary to meet and exceed local support responses SLAs and customer expectations? 
	This language will be modified in the solicitation.  We do not expect physical presence at every site.  We look forward to Offerors’ creative solutions to provide the needed coverage based on industry standards and your experience providing such support elsewhere.  

The hours for which on-site support are actually required may vary from location to location.  But for the purposes of proposing, assume a core period of availability from 7am to 5pm local time with on-call support for outside that window.  Assume at least a minimum onsite team of two staff members for Regional Offices.



	327
	Local Support
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.5,

Bullet 5,

Page 19
	Staffing
	In the Draft PWS on page 19 in Section 3.5.4.1 Local Support, the government that the contract shall “Provide local support to the following special sites which require a different staffing model due to XXXX” then lists “a. Sharpsburg, CA and b. Burlington, MA??

What is the staffing model required for these two sites?
	Currently we support the Western Distribution Center (Sharpe) at French Camp, California with two employees on site coverage from 6:30 am to 3:30 PM.  Additional assistance is provided by Region 9 (San Francisco) Local Support contract techs until 6:30 pm.   Weekend on-call support is provided by a Blackberry technician (rotated among SF technicians).  We also have phone tree support with all parties to ensure that we all have communication during issues.
During the Fire Season (5/1 thru 10/31) - technicians rotate the start time for more coverage.  We also provide on-call support for coverage on weekends if support is needed during the fire season.  If assistance is needed to be on site on weekends, Government staff is deployed.
The Eastern Distribution Center in Burlington, New Jersey is supported with one Technician onsite from 7:15 am - 3:45 pm.  This support is required every day.  Backup support is provided by Region 3 (Philadelphia, PA).   Support required before or after onsite technician hours can be handled by the Region.  The close proximity allows the Region to deploy to Burlington if needed.  Priority tickets that come in after regular business hours are handled by the on-call technician.   If the on-call technician is unavailable a call down list is used to reach managers.

	008
	Local Support
	As-Is-Environment
	Attachment B 3.5 
	Staffing - OCONUS
	How is support handled today for the 4 locations in Asia?
	Support in Asia is provided by a single individual located at Yokosuka, Japan.  As with CONUS where no local presence is available, first resolution at other sites is attempted remotely, then by drop shipment of appropriate replacement unit(s), and finally, as a last resort, by sending this individual on travel to the location.

	071
	Local Support
	PWS
	3.5.2

Constraints
	Staffing - OCONUS
	Item #5 relates to GSA FTEs (2) currently providing local on-site desk side information technology support in Europe. Question: Please specify the location of these FTEs.
	Currently we support Europe from Stuttgart, Germany with two government employees.  

	075
	Local Support
	PWS
	Ref. PWS, Section 3.5.2 

Constraints , item (5):
	Staffing - OCONUS
	Where are the two FTEs in Europe located?



	The current support is located in Stuttgart, Germany, with two government employees

	031
	Local Support
	PWS
	Section 1.3, item 7  
	Standards
	Would the Government please specify which standards would be relevant for providing Local Support online vs. on-site?
	We expect Offerors to provide a best practice solution based on industry standards.

	035
	Local Support
	PWS
	Section 3.1.2 item 4
	Standards
	What is the expectation in regards to achieving a resolution time for on-site service before a replacement device must be provided?
	We expect Offerors to provide a best practice solution.  

	074
	Local Support
	PWS
	Attachment A PWS 3.4

17

#1
	Telework Support
	What is the point of demarcation for GFE and home networking services? Example, if a teleworker has a bad internet connection from their Verizon home service, is it GSA’s expectation the Contractor would remedy this problem with the carrier? 
	The current telework documents will be provided as an attachment to the solicitation.  This should help Offerors to assess the division of responsibility.  In the example given, the Contractor will assist the user to determine that the problem does lie with the home service and not with GSA’s IT services.  (See Attachments 39,40 and 41)

	239
	Local Support
	
	
	Transportation
	Is there a GSA shuttle service between NCR locations?  If yes, will the GSA-GTO contractor be permitted to use the GSA shuttle?
	The shuttle service is available for Contractor staff, but not to transport equipment.

	163
	Local Support - Space
	TOR
	H.5
	GFP
	Given the expectation for the incoming contractor personnel to be located off government site, will the government furnished property (GFP) that is currently in use on government sit by GITGO contractor personnel be conveyed to the new contractor for their use at an other than government site location (e.g., contractor site or teleworking site)? 
	On site Contractor staff will be provided with furniture and computer equipment needed to perform the work.  Telephones and reasonable availability to network printers, fax, and copiers will be accommodated.  For staff not located in government space, GSA will provide network connectivity and computing equipment (computers, handheld, and mobile computing devices) as determined by the Government and required duplicate user experience will be provided as GFE. 

	076
	Local Support - Space
	PWS
	3.5
	Space
	Question: Will touchdown space continue to be provided for hands on local support and if so, will GSA provide the minimum space to be available for each Regional office and Headquarters location?
	The DC area is anticipating a reduction in space in 2013.  No other sites are currently planned for required reduction, however all vendors should propose and consider the amount of onsite spaced needed upon go-live.  Touchdown space will be provided by GSA as and where needed, to include in the Regional Offices and Headquarters.  Offerors are expected to identify space needs they will require to perform.

	077
	Local Support - Space
	PWS
	3.5
	Space
	Question: Will GSA provide a schedule for the reduction of available space in the Regional Offices?
	No detailed schedule currently exists.

	078
	Local Support - Space
	PWS
	Attachment A-PWS, Section 1.1

2

Paragraph 2


	Space
	Section C states that the Contractor will need to designate a location other than a GSA facility as the primary place of performance. Can GSA indicate the locations and available seats for Government site personnel?
	Offerors are expected to propose the space needs they will require to perform.  Offerors are expected to propose the space needs they will require to perform.

	080
	Local Support - Space
	PWS
	Section C  1.1
	Space
	“states that the contractor “designate a location other than a GSA as the primary place of performance.”  Later in this section it states “contractors will still be allowed to provide on-site support periodically but may not permanently encumber physical space in a GSA building.”

Question 3:  We understand that the incumbent GITGO contractors occupy space in GSA swing space at One Constitution Square.  Will GSA provide the GTO contractor with temporary space in that same building during the transition in period to facilitate a smooth transition?
	Yes.  Offerors are expected to propose the space needs they will require to perform the transition as well as that needed on a full time basis once they assume operational responsibility.

	079
	Local Support - Space
	PWS
	Page 1
	Staffing
	How many contractors that applicable to the GITGO are located at the GSA work sites - the Central Office, the Federal Acquisition Service’s (FAS) Washington, DC Metro Area Offices, the Public Building Service’s Washington, DC Office, and in the long term, the National Capital Region’s Office into the renovated Headquarters building located at 1800 F Street, NW, Washington, DC?
	Current assignments are not meaningful to the new requirement and the changing availability of space.  Touchdown space will be provided by GSA as and where needed, to include in the Regional Offices and Headquarters.  Offerors are expected to propose the space needs they will require to perform.

	240
	Local Support / Equipment and Space
	PWS
	
	Asset Management - Space
	How are desktop computing spares stored and issued within the NCR?  Will the GSA-GTO contractor be responsible for storing and issuing desktop spare equipment?  If yes, would GSA allocate storage space at the GSA locations within the NCR?
	Storage space will be made available for inventory assets.  Additional information is available in answers to other questions on Asset Management.

	296
	Local Support / Help Desk 
	
	PWS 3.5.4
	Mobile Devices
	What services are required by GTO for mobile devices (Phones, PDAs)?
	Complete configuration is required.  The GTO Contractor will have limited authorization from our service contract to request break/fix/repair items.  Setup, delivery, and initial training (if needed and limited to general/basic operation) of all mobile devices is also required.

	297
	Local Support / MAC
	
	PWS 3.5.4
	MAC
	How many MAC by location per Week/Month/Year?
	This information is not readily available.  However, GSA will consider providing additional information at a latter point.

	284
	Local Support / MACs
	
	PWS 3.3 Page 11, paragraph 1, last sentence
	Space
	Please provide a comprehensive requirements document regarding the planned DC consolidation.  There is currently not enough information provided by GSA/GTO for the supplier to complete the requested task of a MAC project plan.
	The current schedule for completion is the Spring of 2013.  A detailed schedule for return to 1800 F is not available at this time.

	094
	Local Support / Network
	TOR
	 L.6.1
	Staffing
	Understanding that the contractor must decide on the location of the monitoring facility and service desk – is there any plan to have contractor staff on any GSA site?  If so, what approximate number has GSA planned for and in what locations?
	We expect a presence in Regional Office Building (ROBs) and in the two Federal Acquisition Service (FAS) warehouse distribution sites at Sharpe, California and Burlington, New Jersey.  If physical space within Government buildings is required to perform support activities, the government will provide space.  Any work that can be done outside a government building should be done as such.   The Contractor shall justify all requests for space in a government facility.  However, we expect that much of the support can be provided from Contractor space when onsite assistance is not required.  Please provide your plan to minimize onsite needs but retain quality service.

	030
	Local Support / OCONUS
	PWS
	Section 1.3 item 4
	Staffing - OCONUS
	“OCONUS European Support Personnel—due to Status of Forces Agreement Identification (SOFA) requirements in Europe, two GSA Full Time Equivalent (FTE) personnel currently provide local on-site /desk-side information technology support in Europe. GSA would prefer contractor support for these services.”

Would the Government please clarify if on-site support would be required in the EU?  If so what specific locations? Will all European support be in English or are other languages required?
	GSA is interested in moving this support to contractors, but it is not a requirement to provide this.  If an Offeror can provide the support, they should explain how they can do so and still be within the Status of Forces Agreement.   The current support is located in Stuttgart, Germany, with two government employees.  However, other central locations could be feasible.  English is the only required language.  

	244
	Local Support / OCONUS
	PWS/As-Is
	PWS Attachment A

Section 3.5
	Staffing - OCONUS
	There is a contradiction for OCONUS support in Europe and Asia.  Please clarify requirement.  Some say 2 FTEs, but non consistent.
	Support in Asia is provided by a single individual located a Yokosuka, Japan.  As with CONUS where no local presence is available, first resolution at other sites is attempted remotely, then by drop shipment of appropriate replacement unit(s), and finally, as a last resort, by sending this individual on travel to the location.

	287
	Local Support / PBS
	
	PWS 3.3.2 Data Centers
	Cables
	How many cable changes are requested each week/month/Year? How many moves, adds changes to servers are done per week/month/year? Will GSA provide labor for move crews to move hardware in/out of data centers? Please include the PBS Data Center information.
	This information is not readily available.  However, GSA will consider providing additional information at a latter point.



	108
	Local Support / Space
	TOR
	Section H.5
	Space
	Section states that the government will furnish work space as necessary for individuals assigned to a GSA facility, but Section 1.1 of the PWS states that the contractor is to provide facilities. 

Can the government clarify where facilities will be provided by the government and where the contractor has to provide facilities?
	We expect a presence in Regional Office Building (ROBs) and in the two Federal Acquisition Service (FAS) warehouse distribution sites at Sharpe, California and Burlington, New Jersey.  If physical space within Government buildings is required to perform support activities, the government will provide space.  Any work that can be done outside a government building should be done as such.   The Contractor shall justify all requests for space in a government facility.  However, we expect that much of the support can be provided from Contractor space when onsite assistance is not required.  Please provide your plan to minimize onsite needs but retain quality service.

	238
	Local Support / Space
	
	
	Space
	What is the schedule for completing the renovation of the 1800 F St, NW location?  What is the timeline for re-occupying the 1800 F St location?  In what order will the organization’s re-occupy from the various locations within the NCR?
	The current schedule for completion is the Spring of 2013.  A detailed schedule for return to 1800 F is not available at this time.

	243
	Local Support / Staffing
	TOR
	PWS Attachment A
	Section 3.5 Local Support
	Please explain staffing requirement for Sharpsburg, CA and Burlington, MA.
	The two sites are Sharpe, California and Burlington, New Jersey.  

Currently we support the Western Distribution Center at Sharpe, California with two employees on site coverage from 6:30 am to 3:30 PM.  Additional assistance is provided by Region 9 (San Francisco) Local Support contract techs until 6:30 pm.   Weekend on-call support is provided by a Blackberry technician (rotated among SF technicians).  We also have phone tree support with all parties to ensure that we all have communication during issues.
During the Fire Season (5/1 thru 10/31) - technicians rotate the start time for more coverage.  We also provide on-call support for coverage on weekends if support is needed during the fire season.  If assistance is needed to be on site on weekends, Government staff is deployed.
The Eastern Distribution Center in Burlington, New Jersey is supported with one Technician onsite from 7:15 am - 3:45 pm.  This support is required every day.  Backup support is provided by Region 3 (Philadelphia, PA).   Support required before or after onsite technician hours can be handled by the Region.  The close proximity allows the Region to deploy to Burlington if needed.  Priority tickets that come in after regular business hours are handled by the on-call technician.   If the on-call technician is unavailable a call down list is used to reach managers.

	034
	Local Support /Mobile Devices
	PWS
	Section 3.1.1 item  1
	Mobile Devices
	What specific expectations are there regarding Tablets and mobile devices?

Will support be limited to supporting over the phone and for networking, and synching with PCs?  Does GSA have any restrictions?
	The requirement for tablets is to provide support for the hardening and latest releases of the OS and security software.  It will also be a requirement to provide support for a standard suite of application.  All other applications will be on a best effort level of support.  Guidelines for mobile devices are always subject to change.

	023
	Local Support /Training
	PWS
	9.2.2
	Training
	1. Requirements for training are addressed in the PWS in 9.2.2 and additional references are in 3.3.4 and 3.4.   In situations involving classroom training will GSA provide suitable training rooms or conference rooms in a GSA facility for the contractor’s use?  
	GSA has training rooms in most GSA facilities that can be scheduled and used for training.  For locations without a training room, conference rooms can be configured as a temporary training room.

	024
	Local Support /Training
	PWS


	9.2.2


	Training
	2. Please clarify the requirement for “one-on-one training”.   The PWS at 9.2.2 Training Support states the following:  “The Contractor shall develop, implement and manage formal classroom training, hands-on training, Webinars, Instructional Videos and associated training materials and user guides to support the successful implementation and operation of enterprise IT capabilities.”  Attachment B, GTO As-Is Environment at 12 Training Support states: “The Contractor provides one-on-one training. The subject matter is focused on the use of any aspect of the information technology infrastructure, but typically, it is on new service offerings, features of the workstation hardware, standard image software and approved application software, peripherals and telephones. The Contractor also supports classroom workstations.” Is it a requirement that one-on-one training be provided as a routine service offering to all users who request it?  Or is the intent that the standard or routine training services be group training in classroom settings, webinars, online training, etc. supplemented by one-on-one “coaching or problem solving” on an as-needed basis. 
	Initial one-on-one training is requested for new users for the standard suite of applications (email, VPN, CITRIX, softphone, etc.).  Depending on the level of IT experience of the employee, that could be from 10 minutes up to 1 hour of assistance.  Requests for additional training will be on an as needed basis, but GSA does have many training videos and is increasingly promoting self-help.



	082
	Local Support and Data Centers
	PWS
	Attachment A 3.1.2 Constraint Item 3
	Hardware
	a. In item # 3 it appears that failed hardware items such as a mother board, memory, disk drives, and monitor are replaced by OEM warranties or by 3rd party vendors? IS this how items #3 should be understood. 

b. Do the OEM or 3rd parties send the parts to GSA to be replaced or do the Warranty and 3rd parties send their own staff to complete the maintenance issue? 

c. What happens to units that are not in warranty how do they get resolved? Do units have a GSA image on them when they are shipped? 

d. Can GSA provide a call flow for onsite maintenance activity?
	a. Yes, for items under warranty.

b. Most desk top replacements are sent to GSA for installation.  Some unique equipment may require OEM or 3rd parties to install replacements.  Regarding network equipment covered by Cisco SMARTnet maintenance, replacement components are shipped to GSA for installation and GTO contractor personnel would be responsible for replacing the failed components.

c. Items not on warranty or under contract for maintenance (not the usual situation) will require GSA to research and determine whether to purchase parts and service or replacement units.  

d. These calls are centrally logged as with other service needs reported by user and the appropriate 3rd party is notified from a list providing that information.   
Note:  The Contractor will need to assist with printer repairs in some cases.  GSA hopes to move toward a managed printer service in the near future.

	009
	Network
	As-Is-Environment
	Attachment 17
	
	Attachment 17.  Please provide a legend or key as to what the different colors mean/ signify.


	The colors were accidently left in the document and have no meaning.

	318
	Network
	
	Draft PWS, Section 1.3, Bullet 6,

Page 3
	
	In the Draft PWS on page 3 in Section 1.3 Assumptions and Constraints, in bullet 6 the Government states “…At Contractor provided facilities, the Contractor shall be responsible for providing all resources required to establish connectivity…”

Does this include the cost of dedicated circuits from the GSA network to the contractor facility?  Please clarify.
	GSA will provide the necessary network connectivity (dedicated circuits) to the Enterprise IT Service Desk (EISD).  Other equipment or services are the responsibility of the Contractor.

	052
	Network
	PWS
	3.3.1.2
	Hours
	Constraint #1 states “Provide 24x7 infrastructure support services.” Question: Is this requirement part of the enhanced NOC solution?
	The Task Order will be changed to request two prices for the Network Operating Center – a 24x7 support and a 24x5 with on-call support after hours.  Draft language has been developed to clarify the EIOC and Service Desk support relationship in order to maintain a 24x5 requirement for the EIOC.

	083
	Network
	PWS
	4
	Network
	Please provide documentation describing the functionality, technology and data flow of the current architecture.
	There are numerous attachments and figures with information about these items.

	001
	Network
	AS IS
	Para 8.4, pg. 25
	Remote Access Technology
	Remote Access Technology.  Are the services, including Citrix servers, provided by the Remote Mobile Technologies team within scope of the GSA-GTO-OCIO contract?  We did not see this in the PWS.
	Yes.  Remote Access is included in the scope of the contract.  This will be added to the PWS.

	165
	Network
	TOR
	Page H-6, H.7
	Security
	Is the TS requirement only for IT Security staff or will Network and Server support staff be required to have TS or TS/SSBI?


	A minimum of 2 contractor personnel will require TS/SSBI clearances for Network/Security support in the Washington DC area.

	011
	Network 
	As-Is-Environment
	
	Versions
	Attachment 5.  Please provide version(s) information.
	Version information will be provided. 

	084
	PBS 


	PWS
	Draft PWS,

Section 3.5.5,

Page 21
	BMC
	In the Draft PWS on page 21 in Section 3.5.5 Building Monitoring and Control (BMC) Support Services (Existing), at the top of the page the government states that “These services may be transitioned to the GTO Contractor at the Government discretion”

Should Offeror’s include support for this in pricing and staffing models?  Please clarify?
	Changes are being made to clarify the PBS requirements in relationship to the GTO task order.  As optional services PBS BMC support may be exercised.  In relationship to these servers:

What would be covered:

· Hardware infrastructure support

· Switches

· Routers

· Servers

· Cabling

· Building Automation Control Workstations

· Server patches

· Setup support

· Knowledgeable support

What would not:

· Application support

· Building system support

· Lighting controls

· Building automation

· Advanced metering



	085
	PBS
	PWS
	Section 3.3;
	BMC
	Page 11 second Para from the top: The PWS states”

Currently, GSA Public Building Services (PBS) manages regional servers for PBS Applications.  The GTO Contractor shall work closely with the PBS regional server operations and maintenance contractor to ensure seamless, effective and efficient operations and maintenance of all GSA IT infrastructure.  Services consist of: (the SOW lists 12 services)

Who is performing these 12 services? Is that the responsibility of PBS or the GTO Contractor?  If PBS, is the GTO Contractor simply playing a coordination role?


	The following services are to be provided by the GTO Contractor:

1) Server Infrastructure Support

2) Storage Infrastructure Support

3) Backup Infrastructure Support

4) Virtualized Infrastructure Support

5) Project Management for Server Services

The GTO contractor shall provide infrastructure support up to and including hands-on support for the hardware.  This includes the cabling and power required, the installation in the rack, while PBS will be responsible for support of OS and applications.  When PBS or its support Contractor needs to perform maintenance on the equipment, they should coordinate with GTO so that GTO staff can escort and oversees the work.

Coordination is a mutual responsibility of the GTO and PBS Contractors as well as GSA PBS.

	305
	PBS
	
	Draft TOR,

Section B.12 CLIN Table,

 Page B-4


	BMC
	In the Draft TOR in Section B.12 Draft Section B Tables, on page B-4 in the CLIN Table CLIN 00010B has a Description that reads “Building Monitoring & Control Patch Management (per building) Per application?”

 Would the Government please clarify the reference to “Per application?”
	The CLIN structure is being reviewed and modified.

	315
	PBS
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 4,

Page 21
	BMC
	In the Draft PWS on page 1 in section 4  Networks/ Communications Support, item 5 refers to “BMC production servers.”

Would the Government explain what “BMC” means in this context? 
	Building Monitoring & Control. Changes are being made to clarify the PBS requirements in relationship to the GTO task order.  Please see the answer to question 084

	206
	Pricing
	TOR, B Tables
	Page B-1, Para B-5
	CAF
	The amount of the CAF is ¾ %, i.e. (.0075) of the total price of contractor performance.  Each task order issued under this contract shall have a separate Contract Line Item Number (CLIN) to cover this access fee, and this CAF shall be obligated at task order award.  Recommend you change “Each task order…” to “Each task…”  Under Alliant SB GWAC, this contract will become one Task Order.  IDIQ’s are not allowed.
	This language is taken from the Alliant Ordering Guide.  It is understood that there will be one task order with associated tasks.

	271
	Pricing
	
	Section B.5, Page B-1 and B.12, Page B-3
	CAF
	Reference is made to a separate CAF CLIN however there is no such CLIN in the Draft B Tables. Will this CLIN be added?
	The revised Section B will correct errors.  

	086
	Pricing
	PWS
	9

Enterprise IT Infrastructure Support of as Needed Capabilities

As Needed Support
	CLINs
	Comment: It is suggested that GSA specify how as needed capabilities are to be proposed and priced by the offeror.
	Technically propose based on the work described.  For pricing, GSA plans to provide a Not To Exceed (NTE) value for this CLIN.  For work  under this CLIN, at the direction of the COTR the Contractor will provide a project estimate for review and approval.

	265
	Pricing
	
	Section B.12, Page B-3
	CLINs
	We have tried to account for a mapping of each CLIN and SLIN to a PWS element but have not had some difficulty. Will the government give a clear indication of which PWS section ties to a specific CLIN or SLIN?
	The CLIN structure has been revised.

	266
	Pricing
	
	Section B.12, Page B-3
	CLINs
	Should the subCLINs under 00003D be 0003D1 through 0003D7?
	The revised Section B will correct reference errors.

	267
	Pricing
	
	Section B.12, Page B-3
	CLINs
	There appear to be some missing CLINs in the Draft B Tables. Where is CLIN 00002, 00004, and CLIN 00008?
	The revised Section B will correct reference errors.

	298
	Pricing
	
	PWS 10 Project Management
	CLINs
	Should these requirements be priced in Task Order Management CLIN 00001B?
	There is a new CLIN structure.

	303
	Pricing
	
	Draft TOR Section B.12 CLIN Table Page B-3
	CLINs  - Tiered Pricing
	In the Draft TOR in Section B.12 Draft Section B Tables, on page B-3 in the CLIN Table CLIN 00003D for Enterprise Help Desk Support appears to be asking for tiered pricing to handle service volumes in accordance with the levels described in CLINs 0000D1 through CLINs 0000D7.

Would the Government please clarify the use of “and/or” in specifying the workload affiliated with the pricing bands CLIN 0000D1 – D7?

For example, in CLIN 0000D2, is the offeror  to price the effort it will take for the offeror to service between 45,001 and 52,000 contacts in any given month or between 35,001 and 40,000 tickets in a given month but not both.  

Meaning that, if the number of contacts in a given month is greater than 52,000, the offeror would be pricing in a higher band (i.e. 0000D2 – 0000D7) regardless of the number of tickets managed in that month.  Similarly, if the number of tickets managed in a given month exceeded 40,000, the offeror would be pricing in a higher band (i.e., 0000D2 – 0000D7), regardless of the number of contacts handled that month.  

Would the Government please confirm this understanding and clarify any discrepancies so that the offeror can be responsive? 
	The Contractor’s interpretation of ”and/or” is correct.  We will remove the “and”.

	171
	Pricing
	TOR
	B.12 Section 3.3.4 #8 DRAFT SECTION B TABLES

Attachment A GTO draft PWS, As Needed Support
	CLINs / ancillary
	The PWS refers to the “Special Projects CLIN”.  The CLIN table does not include a CLIN with this name. CLIN 11 Additional Ancillary Service Desk Transition appears to be related. Please clarify.
	GSA will finalize the CLIN structure in the final TOR and ensure all cross references are correct.

In the initial Draft, references to Special Projects CLIN were aligned with Enterprise IT Infrastructure Support for As Needed Capabilities.  We have eliminated the separate Ancillary CLIN and the Special Projects CLIN will be used instead.  The term ancillary has been replaced in the PWS with a clearer explanation.  


	268
	Pricing
	
	B.12
	CLINs / ancillary
	Is CLIN 00011 Additional Ancillary Service Desk Transition to transition services to contractors provided Service Desk and tools? 

Does this contain transition and steady state operations?
	The additional Service Desk transition projects are intended to bring additional GSA application help desks into the GTO Service Desk.  These will now be handled under the Special Projects CLIN.  This would include the work to convert/transition independent help desk(s) into the GTO Service Desk.  Once operational, the additional workload is covered by the increased volume of calls.    The term ancillary has been replaced in the PWS with a clearer explanation.  


	270
	Pricing
	
	B.12
	CLINs / ancillary
	Is CLIN 00011 Additional Ancillary Service Desk Transition to document escalation processes and allow another contractor to manage an Incident queue and participate in Change Management?
	This was a separate CLIN to capture the associated costs to transition additional help desks into the Enterprise IT Service desk if/when these occur.  Such transitions are now considered Special Projects and are geared for project oriented requirements and for only short term use or during transition.  The CLIN in question has been deleted.  Work that would have been done under this CLIN will now be using the Special Project CLIN instead.  The term ancillary has been replaced in the PWS with a clearer explanation.  


	178
	Pricing 
	TOR
	L.9

L-15

L.9.1.c
	Cost Breakdown
	The Government has asked for a total cost breakdown including cost components of labor, overhead and G&A. Since this information was given at the time the Alliant SB contract was competed and the rates contained within the contract have already been determined fair and reasonable, will the Government consider amending this to be a breakdown of labor hours, Alliant or discounted Alliant rate, material and equipment costs and any allocable G&A/M&H on this equipment?
	Yes.  This will be changed to reflect only the Alliant rates and discounts.  There is no expectation of material costs so T&M CLINs are being changed to LH.

	185
	Pricing
	TOR
	Section L.9.1.c,
	Cost Breakdown
	Page L-15, states “The back-up documentation shall detail the labor categories to be used, labor hours proposed by category, material and equipment costs, and a total cost breakdown (to include a summary total for each cost component, e.g., labor, overhead, or G&A).” Additionally, Section L.9.2 Price Proposal Instructions, Page L-16, Paragraph 2, states “For any Time & Material CLINs the Offeror shall identify all proposed costs by cost element (direct labor, direct travel, materials, subcontract expense, and applicable indirect expenses) in accordance with its approved cost accounting system.” Since Alliant SB labor categories and reasonable rates are already established in the basic contract, could the Government please clarify whether providing ASB labor categories, hours, contract rates and applicable discounts is adequate for the price proposal detail?
	Yes, this is adequate. Please see the response to Question 178.

	280
	Pricing
	
	Section L.9.1c, Page L-15 and L.9.2
	Cost Breakdown
	The Price Supporting Documentation (Tab C) includes a request for a total cost breakdown and the Instructions in L.9.2 ask for T&M CLINs to identify costs by cost element. This request would be understandable if cost reimbursable CLINs were proposed however Section B.6 and B.7 lists only FFP, FPAF, T&M and LH CLINs. 
Per the basic Alliant SB contract the Loaded Hourly Labor Rates were determined fair and reasonable for T&M and LH contract types. For FFP and FPAF contract types an assumption can be made that there will be adequate price competition and that price analysis will be satisfied with comparison with competitive published price lists which in this case are the Alliant SB (ASB) Loaded Hourly Labor Rates. 
Will the government remove the requirement for identification of individual cost elements and evaluate the prices substantiated by the ASB Loaded Hourly Labor Rates as long as they do not exceed the rates in the Basic Contract?
	Yes.  Please see the response to Question 178.

	177
	Pricing
	TOR
	L.8.1

L-10

First bullet under General Proposal Instructions
	Estimation Guidance
	The Government states that pricing is to be based on steady state with a narrative of how operations would be adjusted. Please clarify this statement.

a. Does the Government intend for the Offeror to price the “as-is” model for all years or is this just an indication that the transformation pricing must occur after transition and full operations?

b. Please confirm that the “Steady State” pricing should be based on all personnel being on contractor site in DC metro area facilities from the beginning of the contract (PWS 1.1). If this is not the case, please identify when this location change would be required.
	The awardee will be required to initially survey and baseline operations so as to take responsibility for the existing (steady state) operations before making adjustments mutually agreed upon with GSA.  To provide an equitable cost model for evaluation purposes, the pricing of the steady state is being used.

a. The Offeror should price the transition phase as a ramp up to the point of assuming operational responsibility.  Then they should use the “as-is” model as the basis of their price for purposes of price evaluation.  Offerors should include in their planning and apply to their price proposal any savings they can anticipate.  Offerors should explain to the government in their Assumptions how and where they are efficiencies that, over the long term, will result in price reductions.

b.  Use of “Steady State” as the basis of the pricing should offer a level playing field but also provide opportunity to apply savings across the Enterprise, at all locations, not just Washington, DC.  

	175
	Pricing
	TOR
	L.1

L-1
	FAR 52.215-21
	Given that the GSA Alliant Small Business Contract required cost and pricing data and the rates contained within the awarded contracts are considered fair and reasonable, will the Government consider the removal of FAR 52.215-20 from the requirement?
	The reference, FAR 52.215-21 REQUIREMENTS FOR COST OR PRICING DATA, was removed from the TOR in the final version.

	184
	Pricing
	TOR
	Section L.9.1
	Format for Price Proposals
	Page L-15, says price proposals shall be submitted in electronic form, yet the subsequent section identifies proposal tabs for use in binders. Would the Government please clarify whether the Price Proposal should be a hard copy, electronic copy, or both?
	Electronic submission will be specified in the final solicitation.  No hard copies are desired.

	170
	Pricing
	TOR
	B.12


DRAFT SECTION B TABLES
	FPAF
	The text states “Pricing for the listed areas shall be on a Fixed Price Award Fee basis unless otherwise noted”. This appears to require that all CLINS be offered as fixed price. However, some of the CLINS such as 3J emerging technology integration and 6 building monitoring and control installation support requirements that will emerge over the period of performance and can only be estimated at this time. These CLINS would more effectively align with a cost type contract. Is this an option or does the Government believe that all CLINS will most effectively align with a fixed price contract type.
	GSA will finalize the CLIN structure for the final TOR submission. References to Fixed Price Award Fee will be deleted. References to Labor Hour will be added.



	179
	Pricing
	TOR
	 Section  B.12,

Page B-3


	FPAF
	In the Draft TOR in Section B.12 Draft Section B Tables, on page B-3 the government states that “Pricing for the listed areas shall be on a Fixed Price Award Fee Basis unless otherwise noted.”

Would the Government please clarify whether there will be an award fee aspect to CLIN 00007 for Travel and Other Direct Costs?
	References to Fixed Price Award Fee will be deleted. There will be no award fee associated with Travel and Other Direct Costs.

	180
	Pricing
	TOR
	 Section  B.12,

Page B-3


	FPAF
	In the Draft TOR in Section B.12 Draft Section B Tables, on page B-3 the government states that “Pricing for the listed areas shall be on a Fixed Price Award Fee Basis unless otherwise noted.”

Would the Government please clarify whether CLIN 0007A for Travel shall reflect cost incurred as described in section G.9.6.1.4 (pg. G-3 of the draft TOR) or shall be Fixed Price Award Fee as indicated in the Draft Section B Tables on page B-3 of the Draft TOR. 
	References to Fixed Price Award Fee will be deleted.

There will be no award fee associated with Travel and Other Direct Costs.

	181
	Pricing
	TOR
	 Section  B.12,

Page B-3


	FPAF
	In the Draft TOR in Section B.12 Draft Section B Tables, on page B-3 the government states that “Pricing for the listed areas shall be on a Fixed Price Award Fee Basis unless otherwise noted.”

What is the level of award fee that the contractor shall be permitted to earn? Please clarify.
	References to Fixed Price Award Fee will be deleted.  There will be no award fee associated with Travel and Other Direct Costs.

	183
	Pricing
	TOR
	Section B.12: 

Draft Section B Tables

Page B-3


	FPAF
	Section B.12 states “Pricing for the listed areas shall be on a Fixed Price Award Fee basis unless otherwise noted.”  However, there is mention of Time & Material CLIN options in Section B.12.2. Will the Government specify which CLINS will be either FFP or T&M (or another Contract Type) in the revised solicitation? 
	This FPAF reference will be eliminated.  The Government will specify which CLINs are FFP or LH.

	207
	Pricing
	TOR, B Tables
	Page B-3
	FPAF
	Pricing for tested areas shall be on a FPAF basis unless otherwise noted.  There is nothing noted other than Fixed Price.  Which CLINS are Time & Material?
	The CLINS will be identified as FP or LH.

	272
	Pricing
	
	Section B.6 and B.7, Page B-1 and B.12, Page B-3
	FPAF
	Reference is made multiple contract types including FFP, FPAF, T&M and LH in B.6 and B.7 but no such identification is made in the Draft B Tables. Will the government make this identification of contract type by CLIN?
	FFP and LH elements will be present in the finalized Section B.  

	273
	Pricing
	
	Section B.6 and B.7, Page B-1 and B.12, Page B-3
	FPAF
	Reference is made to FPAF contract type. Will the government provide an award fee plan for those CLINs?
	No.  This will be corrected in the revised Section B.

	218
	Pricing
	TOR
	
	GTO Program Oversight
	Will GTO Program Oversight be solicited on a firm fixed price (FFP) basis? What performance data will be provided to form the basis for pricing?
	The GTO Program Oversight vehicle is not the subject of this solicitation.  It will be acquired separately, possibly from standing BPAs.

	169
	Pricing
	TOR
	B.12

B-4

B.12.1
	Indirect Rate
	The Alliant SB contract allows for the application of indirect rates to ODCs and travel in accordance with the contractor’s accounting system but it does not have a specific rate contained within the contract. Given that this is a small business contract and the indirect costs applied to ODCs are true costs, will the Government remove the stipulation that these costs will be unallowable?
	The B.12.1 will be revised as follows:

 “Travel, Tools, and Other Direct Costs incurred may be burdened with the Contractor’s indirect/material handling rate. “



	182
	Pricing
	TOR
	Section B.12.1
	Indirect/Material Handling Rate
	Page B-4, states that if no indirect/material handling rate is specified in the basic contract, none shall be applied in this task order. In the basic contract the only mention of indirect/material handling is under the T&M section (B.7.4.3), and states: “For direct materials and subcontracts for supplies and services, the Prime Contractor may include reasonable and allocable indirect costs (e.g., G&A, material handling, or subcontracting handling as applicable) to the extent they are clearly excluded from the Prime Contractor’s loaded hourly labor rates in accordance with the Prime Contractor’s usual accounting practices consistent with FAR 31.2.” Would the Government please clarify whether indirect/material handling burdens will be allowable for GTO?
	There is no expectation of a material component therefore the references to Time and Material will be changed to Labor Hour in the final solicitation.

	172
	Pricing
	TOR
	B.6

B-1
	NTE CLINs
	CLINs 0005 and 0006 are designated as NTE CLINs.  Will these CLINs be T&M?  
	These CLINs will be hybrid and performed on either a FP or LH basis as applicable once the Contractor estimate is provided.

	092
	Pricing
	Section L
	Page L-3
	Penalty
	Please clarify the Penalty Section example.  We feel that it is excessive and not consistent with our other Fixed Price contracts and Industry Best Practices.
	Industry best practices for information technology service contracts recommend the use of penalties in the form of a fee reduction to reinforce the contractor’s commitment to meeting required service levels, ensure service level compliance, and drive desired contractor behavior. Contractors are more driven to meet service levels that include penalties than those without them. It is GSA’s intent to establish key service levels collaboratively with the Contractor at the minimum acceptable level required and that payment is associated with maintaining the needed performance level. We are seeking a “win – win” situation where by we agree what the performance level should be and the contractor maintains that level.



	176
	Pricing
	TOR
	L.3

L-3

First paragraph
	Penalty
	This clause states that penalties will be in the form of fee reductions. Specific reductions are specified. Clause E-7 on page E-2 states that the FFP associated with nonconforming products or services will not be paid. These are in conflict. Will the Government amend E-7 to be consistent with L.3?
	GSA will revise Section E-7 to remove the following paragraph from E-7. “In the case of firm fixed price deliverables and service, if the contractor does not provide products or services that conform to the requirements of this task order, the Government will not pay the fixed price associated with the non-conforming products or services”.  

	306
	Pricing
	
	Draft TOR,

Section L.3, Page L-3


	Penalty
	In the Draft TOR in Section L.3 Quality Assurance Surveillance, Paragraph 1 on page L-3 states that “This is a performance-based Task Order and GSA intends to incorporate a penalty/earn-back provision in the form of a fee reduction to reinforce the contractor’s commitment…”  The paragraph later describes the application of a penalty and stipulates that a second or third failure would result in a 10% or 20% reduction in the scheduled payment for a given CLIN / SUBCLIN / Task. 

Would the Government please clarify whether the penalty/earn-back structure will be taken as a percentage reduction to the award fee or as a percentage reduction to the full scheduled payment amounts for a given CLIN/SUBCLIN/Task?
	This is not an award fee contract; therefore it will be against the schedule payment for that CLIN or SUBCLIN.

	186
	Pricing
	TOR
	Section L.9.2
	Price Proposal Instructions
	Page L-17, says the following: “Identify all proposed subcontracts that require approval at time of award, and in accordance with FAR 52-244-2 provide all information necessary for the Offeror to obtain consent to subcontract, unless vendor provides an approved purchasing system - In support of the proposed indirect cost rates utilized in the offer…”  Does the Government mean that the vendor should provide evidence of an approved accounting system rather than purchasing system, since this statement is in support of subcontractor proposed indirect cost rates?
	This reference will be deleted.

	167
	Pricing
	TOR
	
	Price Range
	Will the Government provide a Government Estimate or Range for this TOR?  Would you please provide guidance for pricing the surge support CLIN? 
	No estimate or range is being given.  The surge support CLIN is being given a NTE dollar estimate to be used with all Offerors.

	174
	Pricing
	TOR
	General - Attachments
	Price Range
	Will the Government include an attachment with information on the current GITGO level of effort, including a support labor mix breakdown by location? 
	No.

	129
	Pricing
	TOR
	Section B.12, page B-3
	Pricing Table
	The pricing table shown on this page does not include CLIN numbers 2 and 4.  Did GSA intend to include those?  If so, please provide the descriptions
	The numbering sequence will be corrected.

	274
	Pricing
	
	Section B.12.3 and B.12, Page B-3
	Travel
	A separate Travel CLIN is listed in the Draft B Tables. Per the basic Alliant SB contract B.8 “The OCO must identify a not-to-exceed travel ceiling under a separate CLIN on the Order.” Will this travel CLIN have a NTE amount assigned?
	A not-to-exceed amount will be provided to Offerors.

	168
	Pricing
	TOR
	B.12

B-3
	Travel and ODCs
	This clause states that, “Pricing for the listed areas shall be on a Fixed Price Award Fee basis unless otherwise noted.”  Does the Government intend to have ODCs and Travel as Fixed Price Award Fee CLINs or should these be considered Cost reimbursable CLINS?
	References to Fixed Price Award Fee will be deleted.

	173
	Pricing
	TOR
	F.4

F-1

F.4.1
	Travel and ODCs
	Will GSA provide a Government-estimated NTE value for all travel and ODC-related CLINs?
	Yes.

	269
	Pricing
	
	B.12
	Travel and ODCs
	Should all Travel and ODC’s for entire program be placed in CLIN 00007A and 00007B?
	A not-to-exceed amount will be provided to Offerors for Travel.

	314
	Security
	
	Draft PWS,

Section 1.3, Page 3
	ATO
	In the Draft PWS on page 3 in section 1.3 Assumptions and Constraints, the government states in item 6 “Contractor provided facilities processing government data shall have an appropriate Authority To Operate”

Will that ATO be required day one or will the contractor be expected to work with GSA to obtain that ATO? If the ATO must be obtained in a specific amount of time, what is that period of time?
	The Contractor will work with GSA during the transition period to meet that requirement.  

	021
	Security
	PRS
	page 5
	FISMA
	The Security and FISMA Support Services requirements focus only on systems ATO.  Are there no requirements for system operational security?
	Those systems operated for GSA by the GTO Contractor should meet agency security and FISMA standards, which include operational controls.

	020
	Security
	PRS
	 page 5
	FISMA Support
	The Security and FISMA Support Services requirements focus on systems ATO.  This suggests that the contractor will be responsible for all A&A activities for applicable systems.  Is this correct?
	No, all systems presently possess an A&A. The contractor will be responsible for providing support for the ongoing security implementation of the systems and continuous monitoring activities.

	039
	Security
	PWS
	Section 3.3.3, page 13


	FISMA Support
	The section states that Security and FISMA Support Services are to be provided by the contractor.  What is the current management structure for security at GSA?  Will all system, network, web, and access security for GSA be managed under GTO?  What is the distribution of security tools across GSA’s network?  Are the tools managed centrally or locally?
	The current management structure for security at GSA is contained in CIO 2100.1G which spells out the Security Management Structure (roles and responsibilities.) More information on security requirements is provided with attachments and additional will be made available upon award.  

The tools used for security management are enterprise tools. However, these tools change/grow/diminish and are retired throughout the life-cycle of the systems operational life. The contractor should evaluate present state (upon contract award) and make recommendations to the Government on any changes/improvements that could be made to the security fabric and supporting processes.



	040
	Security
	PWS
	Section 3.3.3, page 13
	FISMA Support
	The section states that “the contractor shall coordinate and assist GSA in the necessary activities and in providing the necessary documentation to meet FISMA security requirements and GSA Policies for a Moderate Impact system.”  Does this mean that the contractor is responsible for all Assessment and Authorization (A&A) activities, or does it mean the contractor must support a separate GSA A&A team?  Is the contractor responsible for conducting system scanning, or does it mean the contractor supports a separate GSA scanning team?
	No, all systems presently possess an A&A. The contractor will be responsible for providing support for the ongoing security implementation of the systems and continuous monitoring activities. The GTO Contractor must provide support through cooperation and provision of requested artifacts, the process to document the necessary FISMA security control requirements.    

	087
	Security 
	PWS
	1.1.1 and 1.3

FISMA Support Services and Assumptions & Constraints
	FISMA Support 
	Section 1.1.1 indicates that GSA policies for a Moderate Impact system apply, while the assumptions and constraints listed in Section 1.3 specify Authority To Operate based upon a system high FIPS 199 and FIPS 200 analysis. Question: Can GSA clarify whether moderate or high impact applies?
	While the system may only require an ATO for Moderate Impact per NIST standards, sometimes the level of criticality to government operations requires additional controls or measures to be added.  

	012
	Security
	As-Is-Environment
	
	Policy
	Attachment 4.  Please provide a complete copy of the GSA IT Security Policy.
	The document GSA Order CIO P 2100.1G, GSA Information Technology (IT) Security Policy will be an attachment to the solicitation when released.

	187
	Security
	TOR
	H.7 

Security Requirement
	SCIF
	This section refers to maintaining/accessing a SCIF. Which PWS elements require work in a SCIF?  What is the workload associated with the work in a SCIF?
	No SCIF support is required.



	204
	Security
	TOR 02_3_12
	H.7
	Security Requirements 
	Question: What areas/ locations require TS/SCI clearance?
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC area.  Additional attachments are being provided to show the process and procedures for transferring clearances from other agencies to GSA.

	032
	Security
	PWS
	Section 2.3
	Staff
	Would the Government please identify the security clearances required for individuals providing Local Support?
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC area.  Additional attachments are being provided to show the process and procedures for transferring clearances from other agencies to GSA.

	100
	Security


	TOR
	Page H-6, clause H-7
	Staff
	Page H-6, clause H-7 mentions clearances up to the TS/SCI level. Would GSA expand upon the number of staff typically or currently holding each clearance type (e.g. Secret, Top Secret, TS/SCI) as well as the metrics related to performance in areas requiring clearances?
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC area.  Additional attachments are being provided to show the process and procedures for transferring clearances from other agencies to GSA.

	162
	Security 
	TOR
	H.7 
	Staff
	This section states, “a) All Information Technology Security staff must have a Top Secret Clearance (TS)” The majority of systems and data supported by the GTO contractor will be sensitive but unclassified. It does not appear necessary for security staff working with unclassified systems to have top secret clearance. Will the Government consider reducing this requirement so that only some of the information technology security staff require top secret clearance or explain the reason for requiring all of them to have top secret clearance?
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC area.  Additional attachments are being provided to show the process and procedures for transferring clearances from other agencies to GSA.

	205
	Security
	TOR 02_3_12
	H.7
	Staff 
	In defining the Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) would this be the same as a DHS-level background check or would a DOD NAC (National Agency Check) be sufficient?
	A Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) is required, However, in general, HSPD-12 guidelines specify that

Federal agencies shall not re-adjudicate employees or contractors with previous personnel investigations at another Federal agency. GSA will not require a new personnel security

investigation and adjudication for new contractors provided:

(1) The Federal Protective Service (for contractors) must be able to verify the prior investigation and the associated adjudication results with OPM and/or the agency that performed the adjudication.

(2) The individual has undergone the same level or higher investigation than the one required for the new job at GSA.

(3) The investigation was completed and the adjudication results were favorable.

(4) For contractors, it has been less than 2 years since the end of their last contract with the agency that adjudicated the investigation, unless derogatory information that was not previously adjudicated becomes known to the granting agency.

More information, including procedures will be made available from GSA Order CIO P2181.1 GSA HSPD12 Handbook, V8, and GSA Order ADM P9732.1D Suitability and Personnel Security, which will be attached to the solicitation when released. 


	110
	Security
	TOR
	Section L.6.1, Part 2 table, page L-6
	Support
	The table states a requirement for the approach for “Security including personnel, facilities, and networks.”  In the provided documentation there is no discussion of personnel security beyond technical PIV card support.  What is the requirement for personnel security support?
	The Contractor will be responsible for security of their own facilities to meet the Moderate Impact security level requirements and to adhere to security rules and procedures both there and in GSA provided facilities.   This includes careful attention to personnel security requirements for employees. Further, the Information Assurance/Security Program Manager should develop and implement information assurance/security standards and procedures.  They should develop, coordinate, and evaluate security programs; recommend information assurance/security solutions; and identify, report, and resolve security violations across the Enterprise.  This should include personnel, facilities, and networks. 

	111
	Security
	TOR
	Section L.6.1, Part 2 table, page L-6
	Support
	The table states a requirement for the approach for “Security including personnel, facilities, and networks.”  In the provided documentation there is no discussion of facilities security.  What is the requirement for facilities security support?
	The Contractor will be responsible for security of their own facilities to meet the Moderate Impact security level requirements and to adhere to security rules and procedures both there and in GSA provided facilities.

	220
	Security / Facility / DD254
	TOR
	
	
	How will the GSA require Top Secret clearances for individuals on the contract without the Prime Contractor having a Top Secret facility clearance--a DD254 that requires the clearances under the contract authorizes the awardee under the contract number awarded?  
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC area.  Additional attachments are being provided to show the process and procedures for transferring clearances from other agencies to GSA.  Other issues regarding the security requirements will be determined by OCIO and the GSA Security Office and will be provide at time of award

	109
	Security / Staff
	TOR
	Section H.7, page H-
	Staff
	Does incumbent IT security staff hold Top Secret clearances?
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC area.  Additional attachments are being provided to show the process and procedures for transferring clearances from other agencies to GSA.

	329
	Security / Staff
	TOR Section H.7
	Page H-5
	Staff
	Why does all IT security staff require Top Secret Clearances?
	All contractors are required to possess a Minimum Background Investigation (MBI) clearance.  A minimum of two individuals working network activities should have a Top Secret Clearance.  The work requiring this level of clearance is performed in the Washington, DC area.  Additional attachments are being provided to show the process and procedures for transferring clearances from other agencies to GSA.

	058
	Security /FISMA and Support Services
	PWS
	Section 3.3.3.1

Desired Outcomes Item 1
	Services
	The item 1 states, “Identify security monitoring improvement opportunities for all GSA enterprise IT infrastructure systems”.  What tools are currently or planned to be in place to monitor security?  What tools are used for incident response?  Are there separate tools used for monitoring security for cloud-based applications?
	The point of this requirement is for you to show what kinds of security monitoring expertise the Offeror can bring to the table.  We expect valuable advice to come from our industry partners in this area.  



	059
	Security /FISMA and Support services
	PWS
	Section 3.3.3.1

Desired Outcomes Item 2
	Services
	The item 2 states, “All systems are protected against external and external security threats.”  Can you verify wording was to have been “internal and external”?   What level of protection is expected and required?
	The requirement is for internal and external.  Systems should be protected as outlined in security regulations and agency policy. 

	221
	SLAs
	TOR 
	Section L.3
	
	Section L.3 outlines the penalty terms for the contractor when performance requirements and SLAs are not met. Will the government be willing to also provide an incentive for exceeding performance requirements and SLAs?
	GSA does not prefer incentives as budget considerations make funding very limited.  However, Offerors may propose a performance plan that they feel will increase reliability and efficiency.  See also the answer to Question 088.

	229
	SLAs
	TOR
	 Section L.3; TOR Section M.3.2.3
	
	•The Government states the following in Section L: “This solicitation intends to establish a performance-based task order.”

•The Government states the following in Section M: “GSA will evaluate the extent to which the Offeror’s performance standards include innovative credit structures which includes escalation of the credits to the GSA for systemic and endemic failures to provide the level of service proposed.”

To extend the spirit of a “performance-based task order,” will the Government please confirm that Offerors can propose their own Performance Requirements/credit structures that are framed to provide a structure for incentivizing performance that continuously meets or exceeds standards and/or provides improvements?
	Yes.  See also the answer to Question 088.

	089
	SLAs
	PWS
	Attachment A PWS Section 2.8.1
	7
	Is the Quality System Plan to be submitted with the proposal? If yes, in which part and subpart? Will the plan be excluded from the page limitation?
	THE Quality System Plan is a GTO Deliverable to be provided after award in concert with the Table 2 GTO Deliverables in Task Order Request, Section F.5.  Therefore page limitations do not apply.



	191
	SLAs
	TOR
	B.1
	B-1

B.1.2
	Will GSA provide relief/remedies to the Offeror if Offeror’s SLAs are negatively impacted by 3rd party hardware, software, telecom, or cloud computing services agreements negotiated separately by GSA?
	Yes

	088
	SLAs
	PWS
	2.8
	Performance Management
	Section 2.8 of the Draft PWS titled Performance Management states "The absence from this PRS of any performance requirement under this task order shall not detract from its enforceability or limit the rights or remedies of the Government under any other provision of this task order and contract."  Comment: This is a broad statement that causes concern for the offeror in a fixed price procurement. It is suggested that the Government specify measures to be applied for all performance requirements that will be subject to this provision.
	GSA has specified measures for key performance requirements and will evaluate Offeror’s proposed service levels and negotiate this post award.  To establish a performance standard for every conceivable task/action under the task order is not beneficial to the Offerors’ or GSA. GSA will follow generally accepted review and comment processes for acceptance of work and is expecting a collaborative relationship where by issues are identified and worked in order to avoid major problems.   

GSA wants to reinforce the contractor’s commitment to meeting required service levels, ensure service level compliance, and drive desired contractor behavior. Industry best practices indicate that Contractors are more driven to meet service levels that include penalties than those without them.

	190
	SLAs
	TOR
	
	SLAs
	Current Requirements, What are the current performance requirements, specifically SLAs, and are they being met? Recommend GSA provide 1 year of historical data in order to evaluate systems and network SLAs in this FFP environment. 
	The question is not relevant to the new support being solicited.  The Attachment is meant to show a proposed set of performance measures or, more directly, to propose possible measures.  It is hoped that Offerors will propose their own measures, which are innovative and effective in monitoring performance.  This is one of the areas where GSA seeks innovation to meet the goals of the PWS.  Performance Standards will be a point of eventual negotiation with the awardee.  Upon award the Contractor will be provided an opportunity to perform baseline measurements in preparation for further negotiation of the Service Level Agreements.

	283
	Software
	PWS
	3.3 Page 11, paragraph 1, second sentence
	
	Please provide a comprehensive list of “operations and applications systems” the service provider will be responsible for managing.
	Please see the As-Is attachments for additional information.

	090
	Software
	PWS
	3.1.2
	Constraints
	SharePoint is listed among GSA’s electronic collaboration assets. Question: Can GSA provide clarification concerning their SharePoint license and its availability for use by the contractor for GTO?  
	SharePoint is currently being phased out and thus is not available as GFE.  However, other collaboration offerings such as Google Docs can be made available for the Contractor to use.

	125
	Staffing
	TOR
	L.8.2.2.1 / L-14
	Non-Key Personnel
	This section requires the names of all non-Key Personnel in the Staffing Plan Table, and in the absence of names, the Offeror must indicate “to be determined.”  We ask that GSA eliminate this requirement for the following reasons:

1. There is no evaluation criteria tied to this requirement and no indication how a name will be evaluated versus a “to be determined” citation.

2. This requirement gives the incumbent teams an unfair advantage over all other bidders as they have recognizable and current staff that the evaluators may know.

3. Given the number of contractor staff, this requirement gives the incumbent teams an unfair advantage over all other bidders as the first paragraph of this requirement plainly states that this Staffing Plan Table “…shall contain all individuals that will be working on this effort.” It is unreasonable to believe non-incumbent bidders can commit this many (non-Key) staff at proposal submission. 
	The requirement to provide names of all Non-Key Personnel in the Staffing Plan will be removed from the instructions. 

The goal of this Staffing Plan Table is to examine the staffing numbers and skill sets and the mix of personnel that the Offeror feels will best suit the requirements of the solicitation.   

	227
	Staffing
	TOR
	 Section L.8.2.2.1; TOR Section L.8.2.3
	Non-Key Personnel
	The Government says the following in L.8.2.2.1: “If the names of all non-Key Personnel are not known prior to offer submission, the Offeror may indicate ‘to be determined’ in the Project Staffing Table. The name of non-Key Personnel is the only identifier that may remain unspecified in the Project Staffing Plan Table, however the names of any known non-Key Personnel should be provided.” 

Then the Government says the following in L.8.2.3: “The Contractor shall also include a list of proposed contractor personnel, labor categories, anticipated start dates, and responsibilities.”

Will the Government please confirm that one list providing the aggregate of information will meet the Government’s requirements due to the size of the contract and the current page constraints?
	The requirement to provide names of all Non-Key Personnel in the Staffing Plan will be removed from the instructions. 

The goal of this Staffing Plan Table is to examine the staffing numbers and skill sets and the mix of personnel that the Offeror feels will best suit the requirements of the solicitation.   

One list is preferred.

	192
	Timeline
	TOR
	Section L.6.1
	
	Please provide an anticipated schedule that defines the timeline for evaluation of Part 1, when Offeror’s will receive their Part 1 evaluation results, when Part 2 will be due, and when Offerors will be invited to participate in Part 3.
	The schedule for all phases of the proposal submission will be provided in the final solicitation.

	194
	Timeline
	TOR
	L.10

L-17


	
	The solicitation notes: “The Oral Presentation shall be conducted by the Offeror’s Key Personnel Team.” If the Offeror proposes additional key personnel to the 7 Key Personnel stipulated in section H.2, will those additional Key Personnel also be able to attend and contribute to the Oral Presentation?
	Yes.  We want to see your team in action. The location of Orals may restrict the number of additional personnel who may attend.  GSA is open to negotiating the final number of personnel when scheduling Orals.

	195
	Timeline
	TOR
	Section L.10
	
	Please clarify the schedule for the Oral Presentations.  The third paragraph implies that offerors may be provided with the details of the problems on the day before the presentation, while the anticipated schedule in the next paragraph implies that the details will be provided on the day of the presentation.
	Offerors who are selected as the most highly qualified will be notified of dates and times for Orals.  The details of the problem will be revealed to the Key Personnel team at the Oral Presentation.

	196
	Timeline
	TOR
	Section L.10
	
	Please clarify the requirements for the Oral Presentations.  It appears that there are no requirements for submitting slides in advance of the actual presentation.
	Offerors who are the most highly qualified will be notified of dates and times for Orals.  The details of the problem will be revealed to the Key Personnel team at the Oral Presentation.

	197
	Timeline
	TOR
	Section L.6.1  
	
	Please provide an anticipated schedule that defines the timeline for evaluation of Part 1, when offeror’s will receive their Part 1 evaluation, when Part 2 will be due, and when offerors will be invited to participate in Part 3.
	The schedule for all phases of the proposal submission will be provided in the final solicitation.

	193
	Timeline
	TOR
	
	Attachments
	Please provide an anticipated release date for the missing Attachments (C, D, F, G, H, I, J, K, M, and N). 


	The attachments will be provided in the final solicitation.  The schedule for all phases of the proposal submission will be provided in the final solicitation.

	222
	Timeline
	TOR
	Section L.5.3
	Timeline
	When is the last day that contractors can ask questions on Part2?
	The schedule for question submission and proposal submission for each part of the proposal submission process will be identified in the final documents.

	310
	Timeline
	
	Draft TOR, Section L.6.1,

Page L-5
	Timeline
	In the Draft TOR in section L.6.1 Three Part Process, in the fourth paragraph the government states that “after the release of the TOR, Offeror’s will be afforded the Opportunity to review the requirements, submit question, and submit a response to Part 1.”

How much time will be provided from the release of the final TOR to the submission of a response to Part 1?
	Approximately 3 weeks.  The complete schedule will be included in the final solicitation.



	311
	Timeline
	
	Draft TOR, 

Section L.6.1, 

Page L-5
	Timeline
	In the Draft TOR in section L.6.1 Three Part Process, in the first paragraph on page L-5 the government states “the government intends to us a multi-step down-select approach. It will be conducted in three parts.”

Would the Government please provide details or an estimate on the length of time between Submission of Part 1 and submission of Part 2 of the proposal?
	The complete schedule was provided at the pre-proposal conference and will be included, with minor adjustments in the final solicitation.
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